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and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position, profit or loss of the Company, that
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Annual report

The Board has today discussed and authorized for issue the financial statements and the
annual report and has signed the financial statements and report on behalf of the Company.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union. We consider that the accounting
policies used are appropriate and that the financial statements thus give a true and fair view.

We recommend the financial statements to be approved at the Annual General Meeting.

Vilnius, 15 April 2008

Managemen

ringa Mencitiniené
angging Director

Hom—

Marija Leitoniené

Nerijus Dagilis
(Chairman)
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Lietuva/Lithuania Internetas www.kpmag.It

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
AB Vilniaus Vingis

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of AB Vilniaus Vingis (the
Company), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2007, the income statement,
the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes as set out on pages 5
to 43.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting principles used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
AB Vilniaus Vingis as at 31 December 2007, and of its financial performance and its cash

flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union,

Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 30 to the separate financial
statements which describes that future activity of the Company will depend on the
shareholders’ decisions regarding the Company*s operation as a going concern.

Report on legal and other regulatory requirements

In addition, we have read the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2007 set out on
pages 44-74 and have not identified any material inconsistencies between the financial
information for the year 2007 included in the annual report and the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2007.

Vilnius, 15 April 2008
KPMG Baltics, UAB

%ﬁﬁgﬁm 4—7
orized

Danish State Auth
Public Accountant

ertified Auditor




Income statement

For the year ended 31 December

Litas

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses
Other operating income
Other operating expenses

Operating (loss) profit before financing costs

Decrease in fair value of derivalive financial
instruments

Finance income

Finance expenses

Profit (loss) before tax
Corporate income tax

Net profit (loss) for the year

Earnings loss per share

Notes

o0 oo O h
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..
8,278,313 48,377,558
(9,615415)  (49,794,163)
_(1,337,102) - (1,416,605)
(120,870) (946,097
(3,228,543) (9,819,090)
44,184,119 9,669,507
(6,553,666)  (12,659,752)
32,943,938 (15,172,037
(322,763) (864,028)
1,693,694 48,958
(59491 (9,002,592)
34,255,378  (24,989,699)
(4,906,530) 2,118,000
29,348,848  (22,871,699)
3.39 (2.64)

The notes, set out on pages 10 to 43, are an integral part of these financial statements.



Balance sheet

L.itas

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investments

Deferred tax

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories

Trade receivables

Income tax receivable
Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Note

13
14
15
11

16
17
12
18
19
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2007 2006
83,142 22,806,023
102,358 265,277
906,000 906,000
0 2,118,000
1,091,500 26,095,300
0 3,129,704
1,744,839 3,588,730
0 501,765
54,209,783 1,347,577
34,192 836,273
55,988,814 9,404,049
57,080,314 35,499,349

The notes, set out on pages 10 to 43, are an integral part of these financial statements.



Balance sheet (cont’d)

Litas
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Issued capital

Share premium

Own shares

Legal reserve

Other reserves (distributable)
Retained earnings

Total equity

Current liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Derivative financial instrument
Trade payables

Income tax payable

Other payables

Total current Habilities
Total labilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

20

20
20
20

22
25

12
23
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2007 2006
36,492,420 36,492,420
2,211,200 2,211,200
(3,946,668) (3,946,668}
2,085,956 2,085,956
6,565,901 6,565,901
10,772,936 (18,575,912)
54,181,743 24,832,897
0 1,852,706
0 1,721,324
335,214 1,566,197
2,426,739 0
136,616 5,526,225
2,898,569 10,666,452
2,898,569 10,666,452
57,080,314 35,499,349

The notes, set out on pages 10 to 43, are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of changes in shareholders' equity

Share Share Legal Retained
Litas capital premium Own shares reserve Other reserves carnings Total

LEquity at 31

Brecember 2005 36,492,420 2,211,200 {3,946,668) 2,085,956 4,546,943 6,314,745 47,704,596
Transfer of

reserves 2,018,958 (2,018,958) 0
Net loss for 2006 (22,871,699 (22,871,699
Equity at 31

December 2006 36,492,420 2,211,200 (3,946,668) 2,085,956 6,565,901 (18,575,912) 24,832,897
Net profit for 2007 29,348,848 29,348,848
Equity at 31

December 2007 36,492,420 2,211,200 (3,946,668) 2,085,956 6,565,901 10,772,936 54,181,745

The notes, set out on pages 10 1o 43, are an integral part of these financial statements.



Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December
Litas

Cash flow from operating activities

Result before tax

Adiustments for:

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment

Gain (loss) on revahuation of derivatives to fair value, recognized in the

income statement

Result on disposals of non current assets

Result on sale of shares

Result on sale of investment

Write-down on inventories

Write-down of amounts receivable from subsidiaries
Impairment of doubtful receivables

Net interest costs

Operating profit (loss) before changes in working capital

Change in trade and other receivables
Change in inventories
Change in trade creditors and other creditors

Cash generated from the operating activities
Interest received

Interest paid

Corporate income tax paid / returned

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries

Proceeds from sale of shares

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired
Acquisition of preperty, plant and equipment
Acquisition of shares

L.oans issued

Loans repaid

Net cash from investing activitics

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings
Repayment of finance lease liabilities
Proceeds of borrowings

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The notes, set out on pages 10 to 43, are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2007 2006
34255378 (24,989,699)
1,123,021 6,518,730
0 439,009
(1,721,324) 3,070,711
(38,390,916) 3,978,969
(98,498) 0

0 4,804,057

104,707 0

0 3,838,048

0 (1,364,913)
(1,559,982) 286,416
(6.287,614) (3,417,772
2,143,819 4,455,536
3,024,997 7,524,279
(6,620,592)  (3,257,575)
(7,739,390) 5,304,468
29,686 24,772
(35,214) (311,188)
140,000 920,701
[(7,604,918) 5,938,753
60,153,695 369,033
0 2,447,000

587,304 0

0 (550,000

0 (230,406)

(488,806) 0
(52,596,650) 0
1,000,000 0
8,655,543 2,035,627
(1,852,706)  (36,999,757)
0 (260,202)

0 28,891,612
(1,852,706)  (8,368,347)
(802,081) (393,967)
836,273 1,230,240
34,192 836,273
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Notes to the annual accounts

Reporting entity

The joint stock company AB Vilniaus Vingis (the Company) is a publicly listed company
domiciled m Lithuania. The Company's shares are traded on the Current List of the Vilniaus
Stock Exchange. As at 31 December 2007, the major sharcholders were as follows:

Sharchelding,

Shares %
UARB Hermis Capital 5,533,191 60.65%
UAB Finansy Spektro Investicija 1,709,287 18.74%
AB $iauliy Bankas 905,000 9.92%
AB Vilniaus Vingis 475,817 5.22%
Finasta Fund Alpha, Slegtais Irguld Fonds 204,000 2.24%
AB FM] Finasta® 45,000 0.49%
Other shareholders widely held, no more than 5% 250,810 2.75%

9,123,105 100%

As at 31 December 2007, the Company’s Board includes two members from UAB Hermis
Capital and one from AB Finasta Imoniy Finansaj.

The Company is involved in the manufacture of electronic components. The main products
are deflection yokes.

In November 2006, the Company established 100% owned subsidiary UAB Vilniaus Vingio
Geba with authorised capital of 906 tlitas. 856 tLitas have been paid in by a non-current
asset contribution (for more details see note 15). The subsidiary has assumed the activities of
former AB Vilniaus Vingis department, which has been producing deflection yokes.

Employees, who were working in the former department of AB Vilniaus Vingis, were
employed by the established subsidiary as of 1 December 2006 in UAB Vilniaus Vingio
Geba - 258,

On 25 April 2007, the decision to liquidate subsidiary UAB Vilniaus Vingio Geba has been
taken. Liquidation process has been already started and current subsidiary status is “under
liquidation”.

In October 2005, the Company established two 100% owned subsidiaries: UAB Vilniaus
Vingio Gija and UAB Vilniaus Vingio Mechanika with authorised capital of 30 tLitas cach.
The subsidiaries have assumed the activities of former AB Vilniaus Vingis departments,
which were producing plastic elements (UAB Vilniaus Vingio Gija) and tools and equipment
(UAB Vilniaus Vingio Mechanika). Non-current assets, related to the activities of both
subsidiaries were transferred to the subsidiaries on 30 December 2005 as assets contribution
to the share capital of the subsidiaries. In the year 2006 both subsidiaries has been sold to
former AB Vilniaus Vingis directors (for more details see note 15).

Employees, who were working in the former departments of AB Vilniaus Vingis, were

employed by the established subsidiaries as of 1 January 2006 UAB Vilniaus Vingio Gija —
276, UAB Vilniaus Vingio Mechanika — 136 emplayees.

10
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Notes to the annual accounts

Reporting entity (cont’d)

On March 2006 the Company established a new subsidiary UAB Filmpakas which was
100% owned by the Company. Authorised capital amounted to 500 tLitas and was fully paid
by the Company in cash. On June 2006 the subsidiary has been sold. The subsidiary had had
1o activities before it was sold.

Summary of significant accounting principles

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European Union,

The Board has authorized the annual report for issue on 15 April 2008 and signed the
financial statements on behalf of the Company.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in the national currency — Litas, which is the
functional currency of the Company. They arc prepared on the historical cost basis,

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRSs, as adopted by the
European Union, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. The estimates aud underlying assumptions arc reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The Company will not prepare consolidated financial statements for the period ending 31

December 2007, as the only subsidiary outstanding as at 31 December 2007 UARB Vilniaus
Vingio Geba is considered as not significant in respect to the parent company.

Judgments made by the management in the application of IFRSs, as adopted by the European
Union, that have significant effect on the f{inancial statements and estimales with a
significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in Note 3.

The accounting policies of the Company as set out below have been consistently applied and
coincide with those used in the previous year.

11
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Notes to the annual accounts

Summary of significant accounting principles (cont’d)
Foreign currency

Translation of amounts in foreign currencies into the national currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Litas at the foreign exchange rate ruling
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to the functional currency at the foreign
exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are
recognized in the income statement.

Finanecial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, loans and borrowings, trade payables and other liabilities.

Cash and cash cquivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value plus, for
instruments not at fair value through profit and loss, any directly aftributable transaction
costs, Subsequent to initial recognition non-derivative financial instruments are measured as
described below.

Financial instruments are recognized on the day of the transaction. Financial assets are
derecognized if the Company’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets
expire or if the Company transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining
control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. Financial liabilities are
derecognized if the Company’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged
or cancelled,

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets and are not quoted in an active market. They
are included into current assets except for maturities greater than 12 months. Loans issued
and receivables are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequently, loans and receivables are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, if
any. Short-term receivables are not discounted.

Loans and borrowings and other financial liabilities are stated at the amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method basis. Short-term liabilities are not discounted.
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Notes to the annual accounts

Summary of significant accounting principles {cont’d)
Financial instruments (cont’d)

Derivative financial instruments

In the year 2006 and 2007, the Company had derivative financial instruments (copper swaps)
for trading purposes.

Derivative financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. As at the daie of
financial statements, derivative financial instruments are revaluated {o the fair value as at
that date, the gain or loss on their subsequent measurement at fair value is recognized
immediately in profit or loss. The fair value is arrived at by reference to the broker quotes.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The
cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour and any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use until the
date of its operation, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the
site on which they are located.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs

After the mitial recognition, the costs incurred in replacing a part of property, plant and
equipment or related to the reconstruction of such asset, are capitalized only if it is probable
that future cconomic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of an item can be measured reliably, All other costs are recognized in the income statement
as incurred.
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Notes to the annual accounts

Summary of significant accounting principles (cont’d)
Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment,

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

¢ Dbuildings and plant 8 - 60 years;
* machinery and equipment 2 - 15 years;
» transport vehicles 5 - 6 years;
¢ other assefs 2 - 8 years.

Depreciation methods, residual values and useful [ives of the assets are reviewed at each
reporting date.

Non-current intangible assets

Intangible assets that have a finite useful life and include computer software and licences
acquired by the Company are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment.

Amortization is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives. The estimated usefu! life of the intangible assets can be specified as follows:

e software and licences 1-3  years.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as
incurred.

Leased assets

Leases, in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, are classified as finance leases. Asscts acquired by way of finance lease are
stated at an amount equal to the Jower of fair value and the present value of the minimum
lease payments at inception of the lease, less depreciation and impairment losses. All other
fcases are classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the annual accounts

Summary of significant accounting principles (cont’d)

Inventories

Inventories, including work in process, are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable valuc.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
costs of completion and selling expenses.

The cost of inventories is determined based on FIFO (First-In, First-Out) principle.

In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate
share of overheads based on operating capacity.

Impairment

A financial asset is impaired if there is objective evidence that certain event or events could
have an adverse impact on asset-related cash flows in the future. Significant financial assets
must be tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are
grouped according to their credit risk and the impairment for those groups is measured on a
portfolio basis. An asset the impairment of which is tested on an individual basis and its
impairment loss is continually recognized cannot be included in any group of assets that are
tested for impairment on a portfolio basis.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets other than invenifories and
deferred income tax asset are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

For the assets that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets that are not yet
available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated at each balance sheet date.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identiftable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other
assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognized in the income statement.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of the Company’s receivables carried at amortized cost is calculated
as the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at the initial recognition of these
{inancial assets). Receivables with short duration are not discounted.

The recoverable amount of non-financial assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific {o the asset,
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Notes to the annual accounts

Summary of significant accounting principles (cont’d)
Impairment (cont’d)

Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of receivables booked at amortized cost is reversed if the
subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring,
after the impairment loss was recognized.

In case of certain changes in events or circumstances, on the basis of which the recoverable
value of non-financial assets was calculated, indicating that carrying value on non-financial
assets can be recoverable, impairment loss is reversed. An impairment loss is reversed only
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

Dividends

Dividends are recognized as a liability in the period in which they are declared.

Employee benefits

The Company does not have any adopted defined contribution and benefit plans and has no
share based payment schemes. Post employment obligations to employees retired on a
pension are borne by the State.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when it is probable that an outflow of
cconomic benefits will be required to settle a present legal or constructive obligation arising
from a past event.

Revenue

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized in the income statement when significant risk
and ownership is {ransferred to the buyer, when it is probable that economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of the revenue can
be measured reliably. Sales are recognized net of VAT, excise tax and price discounts
directly related {o the sales.
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Notes to the annual accounts

Summary of significant accounting principles (cont’d)
Revenue {cont’d)

Services rendered, assets disposed

Revenue {rom the services rendered is recognized in the income statement as the services are
rendered in proportion to the stage of completion. The revenue recognized is net of
discounts provided.

Lease revenue is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
the respective icase.

Revenue from disposal of assets is recognized in the income statement when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer.

No revenue is recognized if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the
consideration due or associated costs, or return of assets disposed is possible or when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership cannot be regarded as transferred to the buyer.

Expenses

Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating lease are recognized in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the term of lease,

Finance lease payments

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and the reduction of the
outstanding liability using the effective interest rate method. The finance expenses are
distributed over the whole period of the finance lease, so as to produce a constant periodic
inferest rate on the remaining balance of the liability.

Net financing costs

Net financing costs comprise interest expense on borrowings calculated using the effective
inferest rate method, interest income on funds invested and foreign exchange gains and
losses,

Interest income is recognized in the income statement as accrued, using the effective interest
rate method. The interest expense component of finance lease payments is recognized in the
income staiement using the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the annual accounts

Summary of significant accounting principles (cont’d)

Income tax

Income tax consists of current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the income
statemnent except to the exient it relates to the items recognized directly in equity, in which
case i is recognized in equity.

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment o tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities for the financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not calculated for temporary
differences recorded at the moment of initial recognition of assets or Habilities when such
differences affect neither accounting nor taxable profit. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates that are expected (o be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse based on
the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date,

Deferred tax assets is recognized only to the extent it is probable that the future taxable
profits will be available against which the assets can be utilized. Deferred tax assels are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realized.

Segment reporting

Segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in providing
related products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and
rewards that are different from those of other segments. The Company’s primary format for
segment reporting is based on business segments.

Earnings per share

The Company presents data of basic and diluted carnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary
shareholders of the Company by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects off all dilutive potential ordinary shares. During the reporting period there were
no dilutive potential ordinary shares issued by the Company.
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Notes to the annual accounts

Summary of significant accounting principles (cont’d)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not
yet cffective

New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2007, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements:

Revised IFRS 2 Share-based Payment (effective from 1 January 2009), The revised
Standard will clarifies the definition of vesting conditions and non-vesting conditions.
Based on the revised Standards failure to meet non-vesting conditions will generally
result in treatment as a cancellation. The revised IFRS 2 is not relevant to the
Company’s operations as the Company does not have any share-based compensation
plans.

Revised {FRS 3 Business Combinations (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009). The scope of the revised Standard has been amended and the
definition of a business has been expanded. Revised IFRS 3 is not relevant to the
compatty as the Company does not have any interests in subsidiaries.

IFRS & Operating Segments (effective from 1 January 2009). The Standard requires
segment disclosure based on the components of the entity that management monitors in
making decisions about operating matters. Operating segments are components of an
entity about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly
by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in
assessing performance. The Company has not yet completed its analysis of the impact
of the revised Standard.

The revised IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (effective from 1 January 2009).
The revised Standard requires information in {inancial statements to be aggregated on
the basis of shared characteristics and introduces a statement of comprehensive income,
[tems of income and expense and components of other comprehensive income may be
presented either in a single statement of comprehensive income with subtotals, or in two
separate stalements (a separate income statement followed by a statement of
comprehensive income). The Company is currently evaluating whether to present a
single statement of comprehensive income, or two separate statements.

Revised IAS 23 Borrowing Costs (effective from 1 January 2009). The revised Standard
will require the capitalization of borrowing costs that relate {0 assets thal take a
substantial period of time 1o get ready for use or sale. The Company has not yet
completed its analysis of the impact of the revised Standard.

Revised IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009). In the revised Standard the term minority
interest has been replaced by non-controlling interest, and is defined as "the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent". The revised Standard also
amends the accounting for non-controlling interest, the loss of control of a subsidiary,
and the allocation of profit or loss and other comprchensive income between the
controlling and non-controlling interest. The revised TAS 27 is not relevant to the
Company’s operations as the Company does not have any interests in subsidiaries.
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Notes to the annual accounts

Summary of significant accounting principles (cont’d)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not
yet effective (cont’d)

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007). The Interpretation requires a share-based
payment arrangement in which an entity receives goods or services as consideration for
its own equity-instruments to be accounted for as an equity-seftled share-based payment
transaction, regardless of how the equity instruments needed are obtained. It also
provides guidance on whether share-based payment arrangements, in which suppliers of
goods or services of an entity are provided with equity instruments of the entity’s
parent, should be accounted for as cash-seitied or equity-settled in the entity’s financiat
statements. IFRIC 11 is not relevant to the Company’s operations as the Company has
not entered into any share-based payments arrangements.

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements {effective from 1 January 2008). The
Interpretation provides guidance to private sector entities on certain recognition and
measurement issues that arise in accounting for public-to-private service concession
arrangements. IFRIC 12 is not relevant to the Company’s operations as the Company
has not entered into any service concession arrangements.

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2008). The Interpretation explains how entities that grant loyalty award
credits to cusiomers who buy other goods or services should account for their
obligations to provide free or discounted goods or services (‘awards’) to customers who
redeem those award credits. Such entities are required to allocate some of the proceeds
of the initial sale to the award credits and recognize these proceeds as revenue only
when they have fulfilled their obligations. The Company does not expect the
Interpretation to have any impact on the financial statements.

IFRIC 14 1AS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements (hereinafter MFR) and their interactions (effective for annual periods
beginning on or afier | January 2008). The interpretation addresses:

1) when refunds or reductions in future contributions should be regarded as available in
accordance with paragraph 58 of IAS 19;

2) how a MIFR might affect the availability of reductions in future contributions; and

3y when a MFR might give rise to a liability.

No additional liability need be recognized by the employer under IFRIC 14 unless the
contributions that are payable under the minimum funding requirement cannot be
returned to the company. The Company has not yet completed its analysis of the impact
of the new interpretation.
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Notes to the annual accounts

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and assumptions are continually reviewed and are based on historical experience
and other factors, representing current situation and reasonable expected future events.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning fulure events, therefore
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the
carrying amourds of the assets and liabilitics within the next financial year are discussed
below.

Impairment losses on receivables

The Company reviews iis receivables to assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis, In
determining whether impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the
Company makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of receivables
before the decrease can be identified with an individual receivable in that portfolio. This
evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the
payment status of debtors, national or local economic conditions that influence the group of
the receivables.

The management evaluates probable cash flows from the debtors based on historical loss
experience related to the debtors with a similar credit risk. Methodology and assumptions
used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash {lows are reviewed regularly
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Segment reporting
Segments information is presented in respect of the Company’s business and geographical
segments.
The Company comprises the following main business segments:

- Production activity. The manufacture of electronic components;
- Rent activity. The rent of business and other premises.

Other operations include transportation and other services provided for the clients of the
Company.
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Notes to the annual accounts

Segment reporting (cont’d)

Results for 2007 by business scgments can be specified as follows:

1Litas

Revenue

Expenses

Gross profit

Operating expenses

Other activity result

Operating result before financing costs
Decrease in fair value of derivatives
Net financing items

Resuit before tax
Income tax expenses

Net segment result for the year
Total assets:

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure

Depreciation

Amortization of intangible asset
Impairment osses on intangible assels
and property, plant and equipment

Discontinued

Discontinued

AB Vilniaus Viangis

Annual accounts for the year 2007

production rent

activily activity Un-allocated Total
6,353 1,925 0 8,278
(8,350) (1,265) 0 7 7(9,6!5)
{1,997) 660 0 (1,337
(3,349) (3,349
i 37,629 37,630
(1,997 661 34,280 32,944
(323) (323}
1,634 1,634
(2,320} 661 35,914 34,255
(4,906) (4,906}
(2,320) 061 31,008 29,349
1,704 53 55,323 57,080
335 2,564 2,899
0 G G ¢
747 82 131 961
13 0 150 162
0 0 0 ¢

Un-alfocated profit mainly included gain from sale of the Company’s buildings on 4 April

2008.
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Segment reporting (cont’d)

AB Vilniaus Vingiy
Annual accounts for the year 2007

Results for 2006 by business segments can be specified as follows:

Production Rent Other
tLitas activity activity cperations  Un-allocated Total
Revenue 42,961 5,129 287 48,377
Expenses 46,347 3,168 279 49,794
Gross profit (3,386) 1,961 8 (1,417
Operating expenses (10,765) {10,765)
Other activity result (2,990} (2,990
Operating result before financing
costs (3,386) 1,961 8 {13,755 (15,172)
Decrease in fair value of
derivatives {864) (864)
Net financing items (8,953 (8,953)
Result before tax (12,339} 1,961 8 (14,619} (24,989)
Income tax income 2,118 2,118
Net segment result for the year (12,339) 1,961 8 (12,501 (22,871)
Total asscts: 19,744 7,681 8,074 35,499
Total liabilities: 1,448 439 8,779 10,666
Capital expenditure 25 205 230
Depreciation 5,486 375 401 0,262
Amortization of intangible asset 58 199 257
Impairment fosses on intangible
assets and property, plant and
equipment 439 439
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Segment reporting (cont’d)

AB Vitniaus Vingis
Armual aceounts for the year 2007

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based
on the geographical location of customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical

tocation of the assets.

Results for 2007 by geographical segments can be specified as follows:

tLitas

Revenue
Bxpenses

Gross profit
Operaling expenses
Other activity resuits

Operating resuit before financing
costs

Decrease in fair value of derivatives

Net financing expenses

Result before tax
Income tax expense

Net seginent result for the year
Total assets:
Total liabilities:

Capital expenditure:

Lithuania Hungary Poland Other Total
2,044 5,951 283 0 8,278
1,757 6,991 867 9,615

288 (1,040) (583) 0 {1,337)
(3,277) (66) 6) (3,349)
37,630 37,630
34,641 (1,106) (591} 0 32,994

(323) {323)
1,634 1,634
35,952 (1,106) (591 0 34,255
(4906 (4,906)
31,046 (£,106) (591 0 29,349
56,939 0 96 45 57,080
2,810 0 0 88 2,898
0 ¢ ] 0 0
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Notes to the annual accounts

Segment reporting (cont’d)

AB Vilnfaus Vingis
Annual accounts for the year 2007

Results for 2006 by geographical segments can be specified as follows:

tLitas

Revenue

Expenses

Gross profit
Operating expenses
Other activity resuits

Operating result financing costs
Decrease in fair value of derivatives
Net financing expenses

Result before tax
Income tax expense

Net segment result for the year
Taotal assets
Total liabilities

Capital expenditure

Distribution expenses

Litas

Transportation

Salaries and social insurance
Depreciation

Commissions

Other

Lithvania Hungary Poland Other Total
18,260 24,172 5,945 48,377
15,985 27,55G 6,259 49,794

2,275 (3,378) (3143 0 (L417)

(10,765) (10,765)

(2,990) B (2,990}

(11,480) (3,378) 314) 0 (15,172)

(864) (864)

(8,953) (8,933)

(21,297) (3,378) (314) 0 {24,989)

2,118 2,118

(19,179) (3,378 3i4) 0 (22,871)

35,230 264 5 0 35,499

10,373 293 10,666

230 230
2007 2006

72,750 287,250

1,754 378,797

627 13,598

0 109,430

45,739 157,022

120,870 946,097
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Notes to the annual accounts
Administrative expenses

Litas

Salaries and social insurance
Support

Territory guards and cleaning
Depreciation and amortization of non current assef
Utilities

Real estate and other tax

Cars exploitation

Repairs

Intermediary services

Business trips

Impairment for amounts receivable
Impairment for non current asset
Employee training

Other

Personnel expenses

Litas

Wages and salaries
Compulsory social security contributions

AB Vitniaus Vingis

Annual accounts for the year 2007

2007 200
877,481 3,563,726
526,355 190
165,950 744,505
282,555 929,316
118,193 279,785
58,312 232,440
46,783 153,570

15,813 469,868

7,901 467,867

1,872 58,015

0 1,364,913

0 439,009

0 5,509

1,127,328 1,110,377

3,228,543 9,819,090
2006

887,880 9,946,369

254,947 3,070,541

1,142,827 13,016,910

Staff costs include wages and salaries and emoluments (including social security
contributions) for the management of 314 tLitas (2006: 1,173 tLitas).

The Company had 6 employees at the end of 2007 (2006: 48 employees). In 2007: 42
employees were dismissed, and redundancy payments amounted to 424 (Litas, including
social security contributions (in 2006: 599 employees were dismissed and redundancy

payments amounted {o 3,633 tLitas).

26



Notes to the annual accounts

Other operating income and expenses

Litas

Gain from sales of property, plant and equipment
Sales of raw materials and goods for resale
Service resale to subsidiaries

Gain from unclaimed trade liabilities

Other gains

Other operating income

Loss from disposed property, plant and equipment
Costs of sales of raw materials and goods for resale
Raw materials written-off

Other costs

Other operating expenses

Other activity result

Financial income and expenses

Litas

Interest for loans

Profit from sale of subsidiary

Profit from shares sales

Deposit account interest

Interest income

Fines and delays

Financial income

Interest expense on bank borrowings and lease
Foreign exchange loss

Bank commission

Other financial expenses

Amounts receivable from subsidiaries written off
L.oss from sale of subsidiaries

Financial expenses

Financial items, net

AB Vilniaus Vingis

Annual accounts for the vear 2007

2007 2006
43,265,715 369,033
896,203 8,500,643

0 746,755

0 8,269

201 44,807

44,184,119

9,669,507

4,874,265 4,109,746
1,567,855 8,521,415
104,707 0
6,839 28,591
6,553,666 12,659,752
37,630,453 (2,990,245)
2007 2006
1,565,510 42
0 2,000
98,498 0
21,643 0
8,043 24,772
0 22,144
1,693,694 48,958
35,214 311,188
13,330 12,711
7,943 31,466
2,880 2,221
124 3,838,948
0 4,806,058
59,491 9,002,592
1,634,203 (8,953,634)

In the year 2006 the Company sold 3 of its subsidiaries: UAB Vilniaus Vingio Gija, UAB

Vilniaus Vingio Mechanika and UAB Filmpakas.

Sale of UAB Vilntaus Vingio Gija and UAB Vilniaus Vingio Mechanika resulted in a loss
amounting to 4,806 tLitas. Furthermore, according to the decision of the Company’s Board
of Directors, amounts receivable for productions, services and materials provided during
period from January 2006 to July 2006 to mentioned subsidiaries, were written off. Loss due
to the amounts receivable written-off comprises 3,839 tLitas. Subsidiary UAB Fimplakas has

been sold with 2 thousand Litas profit.

For more details about Company’s subsidiaries refer to Note 15 fnvestment in subsidiaries,

27



10

Notes to the annual accounts

Corporate income tax expenses
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Annual accounts for the year 2007

Litas 2007 2006

Current tax expense

Current income tax (2,323,775} 0

Carrent temporary social tax (464,755)

Corporate income tax corrections for previous periods 0 0
(2,788,530) 0

Deferred tax expense

Deferred tax expense (2,118,000) 0

Deferred tax income 12,118,000
(2,118,000) 2,118,000

Total income tax expense (4,900,530) 2,118,000

The reconciliation of the effective tax rate 1s as follows:

{Litas 2007 2006

Result before tax 34,255 (24,989)

Income tax using effective tax rate 18.0% 6,166 19.0% (4,748)

Amounts receivable written-off 0.0% 5 (3.H% 782

Impairment for non-current asset 0 {0.3)% 84

Other non-deductible expenses 0.0% 5 (0.1Y% 33

Utilization of tax losses for which no deferred

tax asset was recognized 3.1% (1,270) 0% 0

Unrecognized deferred tax asset on temporary

deductible differences 0 {(7.6)% 1,902

Adjustment for effect of increased corporate

income tax rate for unrecognized deferred tax

assel 1] 0.6% (173)

14.3% 4,906 8.5% (2,118)
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11 Deferred tax

2007 2006

Temporary Deferred tax Temporary Deferred tax
thitas di_flfcr_c_pc_c _ (15%) difference (13_%}
Difference between tax basis and
carrying amount of inventories 0 0 1,137 204
Impairment on rade receivable 320 48 320 58
Impairment on other receivable 836 125 836 150
Accrued expenses 0 0 116 21
Taxable loss carried forward 230 35 19,933 3,588

1,386 208 22,342 4,021

Unrecognized deferred tax asset (208) (1,902)
Deferred tax asset
as at 31 December 0 2,118

Taxable loss carried forward related to loss from derivative financial instruments, which can
be carried forward for 3 years and netted only with profit from investing activity.

Deferred tax asset has not been recognized due to uncertainty of its realization.

The movement in the deferred tax asset account is as follows:

Litas 2007 2006

Deferred tax asset at 1 Jannary 2,118,000 0
Change in deferred tax asset (2,118,000) 2,118,000
Deferred {ax assct at 31 December ¢ 2,118,000

12 Current tax assets and Habilities

The current tax liability of 2,427 tLitas (2006: 501 tL.itas asset) represents the amounts of
income tax and temporary social tax payable in respect of current period.
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13 Property, plant and equipment

AB Vilniaus Viangis

Annual accounts for the year 2007

Machinery Tools,
and fixtures and Transport

Litas Buildings equipmerd Tittings vehicles Tolal
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 1 January 2006 25,277,588 26,984,476 24,937,655 1,702,269 78,901,988
Additions 1,914 34,787 145,677 182,378
Disposals (263,774} (13,641,100} (11,300,141 (1,323,601) (26,528,616)
Contribution (o subsidiaries (3,239,385) (2,091,558) {139,270 (5,470,213)
Reclassifications 0 (2,632) 2,632 0 ]
Balance at 31 December 20006 25,013,814 10,103,273 11,583,375 385,075 47,085,537
Balance at | January 2007 25,013,814 10,103,273 11,583,375 385,073 47,085,537
Additions 0 0 0 0 0
Disposals (25,013,814) {i0,100,459) (11,372,517) (302,397) (46,789,187)
Balance at 31 December 2007 0 2,814 210,858 82,678 296,350
Depreciation and impairment losses
RBalance at 1 January 2006 8,837,375 17,422,959 16,858,345 1,254,591 44,373,270
Depreciation for the year 438,989 2,851,326 2,855,045 116,72 6,262,080
Impairment loss ¢ 76,202 379,62 (16,813) 439,009
Disposals (70,000} (11,255,747) (9,866,417) {988,468) (22,180,628)
Contribution to subsidiaries 0 (2,706,606) (1,789,938) {117,669) (4,614,213}
Reclassifications 0 (2,630 (2,630) 0 ¢
Balance at 31 December 2006 9,206,364 6,385,504 8,439,285 248,361 24,279,514
Balance at 1 January 2007 9,206,364 6,385,504 8,439,285 248,361 24,279,514
Depreciation for the year 73,165 388,092 471,135 28,183 960,575
Impairment loss 0 0 0 0 0
Disposals (9,279,529) (6,770,785) (8,719,545) (257,022) (25,026,881)
Balance at 31 December 2007 0 2,811 100,875 19,522 213,208
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2006 16,440,243 9,561,517 8,079,210 447,678 34,528,718
At 31 December 2006 15,807,450 3,717,769 3,144,090 136,714 22,800,023
At 1 January 2007 15,807,450 3,717,769 3,144,090 136,714 22,806,023
At 31 December 2007 0 3 19,983 63,156 83,142
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13 Property, plant and cquipment (cont’d)

Depreciation has been allocated as follows:

Litas 2007 20006

Production costs 744,993 5,201,338
Administrative expenses 132,741 672,666
Rent costs 82,215 374,678
Distribution expenses 627 13,598
Total 960,575 6,262,280

Property plant and equipment with a book value of 856 tlitas has been transferred to the
subsidiary as at 31 December 2006 as non current asset contributions to its share capital, as
explained in note 15 to the annual accounts,

On 24 October 2006, the Company has signed real estate sales agreement, according to
which, buildings located in Savanoriy av. 176, Vilnius has been sold on 4 April, 2007, after
full payment from the buyer has been received. Agreed sales price comprise 59,000 thousand
Litas, excluding VAT. Profit from real estate sale for the year 2007 amounts to 43,266 tl.itas.

Other non-current assets of the Company have been sold with loss amounting to 4,874 tLitas.

Leased plant and machinery

As at 31 December 20006 the Company had repaid all financial leasing labilities and has no
assets under financial leasing agreements as at 31 December 2007.

As at 31 December 2007 the Company has no asset rented.

Scecurity
At 31 December 2007, the Company has no asset pledged.
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Intangible fixed assets

Litas
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2006
Additions
Disposals
Balance at 31 December 2006

Balance at 1 January 2007
Additions

Disposals

Balance at 31 December 2007

Amortization and impairment losses

Amortization at 1 January 2006
Amortization for the vear
Disposals

Amortization at 31 December 2006

Amortization at 1 January 2007
Ammortization for the year
Disposals

Amortization at 31 December 2007

Carrying amount
At 1 January 2006
At 31 December 2006

At 1 January 2007
At 31 December 2007

Licenses and

AB Vilniaus Vingis
Annual accounts for the year 2007

Amortization has been allocated as follows:

Litas

Administrative expenses
Production costs

Total

___cc_l_u_ ficath Sofiware Total
397,982 1,122,571 1,520,553
24,528 23,500 48,028
(255,010} (2,100} (257,110}
167,500 1,143,971 1,311,471
167,500 1,143,971 1,311,471
0] 0 0
(77,415) (670,936) (748,351)
90,085 473,035 563,120
312,957 733,683 1,046,640
57,520 199,130 256,650
(254,998) (2,098) (257,096)
115,479 930,715 1,046,194
115,479 93G,715 1,046,194
34,588 127,858 162,446
{77,400) {670,472) (747,873)
) _’{?,661 388,101 460,762
85,025 388,888 473,913
52,021 213,256 265,277
52,021 213,256 265,277
17,424 84,934 102,358

2007 2006
149,814 256,650
12,632 0
162,446 256,650
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Notes to the annual accounts

Investments in subsidiaries

In November 2006, the Company has established a 100% owned subsidiary UAB Vilniaus
Vingio Geba. The investment is stated at cost.

Litas 2007 2006
Paid in share capital of UAB Vilniaus Vingio Geba 500,000 $06,000

The share capital of the subsidiary has been fully paid as at 31 December 2007. Share capital
of subsidiary UAB Vilniaus Vingio Geba comprise 50 Litas paid in cash and other 856
tLitas has been contributed by non-current assel. Non-current assets have been transferred as
at | December 2006, and its book value could be specified as follows:

Litas Net book value

Machinery and equipment 532,719
Tools, fixtures and fittings 301,620
Transport vehicles 21,601
Total contribution 856,000

In 2007 AB Vilniaus Vingis Board of Directors has taken decision to start the liguidation
process for the subsidiary UADB Vilniaus Vingio Geba. Currently, the subsidiary is stifl under
liquidation.

The main ratios of UAB Vilniaus Vingio Geba:

Litas Atthe end of
financial year

Total asset 200,423

Shareholder equity 200,423
Financial year net result (683,236)
Sales income 3,093,865

Sales income of subsidiary UAB Vilniaus Vingio Geba for year 2007, comprise income
received for production services provided to parent company AB Vilniaus Vingis (see note
27).

During year 2006, the Company sold three subsidiaries, which were established in year 2005
and 2006:

- UAB Filmpakas

- UAB Vilniaus Vingio Gija

- UAB Vilniaus Vingio Mechanika
The subsidiary UAB Filmpakas has been sold with 2 tLitas profit. The subsidiary had no
activities till it was sold.
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Notes to the annual accounts

Investments in subsidiaries {cont’d)

AB Vilniaus Vingis
Annual accounts for the year 2007

Sale of the subsidiaries UAB Vilniaus Vingio Gija and UAB Vilniaus Vingio Mechanika has

resulted in a loss of 8,645 tlitas which is disclosed below:

Litas

Cost of investments
Sales price

Sales result

Amounts receivable from
subsidiaries written-off

Final loss related to the sale of
subsidiarics

Inventories

Litas

Raw materials
Finished goods

Net book value at 31 December

Vilniaus Vingio

Vilniaus Vingio

Gija Mechanika Total
4,336,841 2,414217 6,751,058
£,000,000 945,000 1,945,000

(3,336,841} (1,469,217} (4,800,058)

(1,735,251) (2,103,697) (3,838,948

(5,072,092) (3,572,914) (8,645,006}
o7 2006

0 1,699,118

) _ _O 1,430,586

0 3,129,704

Raw materials as at 31 December 2006 consist of plastics, wires, metals and other materials

used in production.

Inventories charged to the income statement are as follows:

Litas

Cost of sales (produced goods sold)
Other operating expenses (goods for resale sold, raw materials,

spare parts sold)

Other operating expenses {raw materials) written-off

Trade receivables

Litas
Trade receivables
Accumulated impairment

Net book value at 31 December

2007 2006
9,615,415 49,794,163
1,567,855 8,521,415

104,707 0

11,287,977 58,315,578
2007 2006
2,066,450 3,910,341
(321,611 (321,611)
1,744,839 3,588,730
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Notes to the annual accounts

Other receivables

Litas

Short term joans

Interest receivable

VAT and other tax overpayment
Prepayments and deferred charges
Other receivables

Net book value at 31 December

Ferms and repayment schedules of the loans issued

L.itas

Loan to UAB Hermis Capital of LTL 37,000 thousand, 4% annual
interest
Loan to AB Invalda of L TL 18,000 thousand, 4% annual interest

Loans balance at the end of the year

AB Vilniaus Vingiy
Annual accounts for the year 2007

Interest accrued as at 31 December 2007 include interest of 1,528 tLitas for loans provided
to sharcholders specified above, and 11 tlitas interest receivable from formed subsidiary

UAB Vilniaus Vingio Gija.

In February 2008, loan agreements have been changed foreseeing new maturity date of the

loans - 1 June 2008,
Cash and cash equivalents

Litas

Term deposits
Cash at bank
Cash in hand

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

2007 2006
52,596,650 1,000,000
1,539,017 0
56,773 316,377
6,102 18,650
11,241 12,550
54,209,783 1,347,577

Maturity Total
2008.03.04 35,416,650
- 2008.03.01 17,180,000
52,596,650

2007 2006
0 547,756
30,294 256,002
3,898 _ 32,455
34,192 836,273
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Notes to the annual accounts

Capital and reserves

Share capital
The share capital comprises 9,123,105 ordinary shares with a nominal value of 4 Litas cach
and the total share capital amounts to 36,492,420 Litas.

The holders of the ordinary shares are eatitled to one vote per share in the meeting of the
Company and are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and to capital
repayment in case of decrease of the capital.

Reacquired own shares

The Company did not acquire any of its own shares on the Vilnius Stock Exchange in year
2007 or 2006:

2007 2006
Number of Number of
Litas shares Total, Litas shares Total, Litas
At | January 475,817 3,940,688 475,817 3,946,088
Treasury shares acquired in the market 0 0 0 0
At 31 December 475,817 3,946,688 475,817 3,946,688

Reacquired own shares are shown as a deduction from the equity at their acquisition price.

Legal reserve

The legal reserve in the amount of 2,086 tLitas (2006: 2,086 tLitas) is a compulsory reserve
under Lithuanian legislation. Annual contributions of minimum 5% of the profit available for
distribution, are required until the legal reserve reaches 10% of the authorised capital.

Other reserves

Other distributable reserves in the amount of 6,566 tL.itas {2006 6,566 tl.itas) were formed
according to the shareholders decision and comprise the reserve for own shares acquisition.

Before profit allocation, all distributable reserves are transferred to retained earnings and re-
distributed by the sharehoiders decision each year.
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AB Vilniaus Vingis
Aninwal accovnis for the year 2007

Notes to the annual accounts

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to
shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
The average number of ordinary shares reacquired by the Company is excluded from shares
outstanding during the vear.

Lias e 2007 2006

Shares issued 1 January 9,123,105 9,123,105
Effect of own shares (475,817) (475,817)
Average weighted number of shares in issue 8,647,288 8,647,288
Net result for the year, Litas 29,348,848 (22,871,699)
Profit/loss per share, Litas “ 3.39 (2.64)

The Company has no dilutive potential shares or convertibles. The diluted loss per share is
the same as the basic loss per share.

Interest bearing loans and other non-current fiabilities

Litas 2007 2006
Short term, secured financing facility 0 1,852,706
Net book value at 31 December ] 1,852,706

At the end of the year 2006 the Company had a credit of 1,853 tLitas, which during year
2007 was fully repaid.

Other creditors

Litas 2007 2006

Salaries and related taxes 3,067 35,963
Advances 0 5,006,519
Coliateral for the rent 0 210,920
Vacation allowances 0 67,337
Payable to customs O 4,094
Other payable and accrued charges 133,549 201,386
Net book value at 31 December 136,616 5,520,225

Advances received as at 31 December 2006 include 5,000 tLitas advance for the buildings,
made according 1o buildings sale agreement signed on 24 October 2006, and other advances
of 7 tLitas.

Other payable as at 31 December 2007 include 114 tLitas dividends payable (116 1l.itas in
2006} and other amounts payable of 20 tl.itas.
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Notes to the annual accounts
Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

o Credit risk,

+ Liquidity risk,

» Market risk.
This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the
Company’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout
these annual accounts.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s risk management policies are
established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls, and 1o monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive conirof environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counferparty 10 a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Company’s receivables from customers.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of
incurred losses in respect of frade and other receivables. This allowance for impairment
inchades only specific loss, related to individually significant trade and other receivables.

As at 31 December 2007 the Company has overdue amount of 1,472 tl.itas receivable from
its formed subsidiary. No impairment was recognized on the amount receivable, as the
management is confident the amount will be settled.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitics when due, under both normaj
and stressed conditions, without fncurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company’s reputation.

Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected
operational expenses, including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the
potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as
natural disasters.
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Notes to the annual accounts
Financial risk management (cont’d)

Muarket risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rales and
interest rates will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the retura.

Interest rate risk

The Company has no borrowings, which are subject to variable interest rate. As at 31
December 2007, the Company did not use any financial instruments to hedge its exposure 10
the cash flow risk relfated to debt instruments with variablie interest rates or price risk related
to debt instruments with fixed interest rates.

Currency risk

The functional currency of the Company is Litas (LLTL). The Company faces foreign
currency risk on purchases and borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than
Litas and EUR. The risk related to transactions in EUR is considered to be insignificant as
the Lithuanian Litas is pegged to EUR at a fixed rate. The currency giving rise to this risk is
primarily US Dollars. The Company did not use any instruments to hedge its exposure to
foreign currency exchange risk.

The Company held position in foreign currencies as stated below:

31 December 2007 31 December 2006
tlitas EUR UsD EUR usn
Trade debtors ‘ 28 18 264
Prepayments and other receivables 1 5
Fair value derivative financial instruments {1,606)
Cash 1 11 548
Borrowings (1,853)

Trade creditors (38) (106) (186)
Advances received (6) 0
30 (20} (1,685) (1,194)

Exchange rate of US Dollars was 2.3572 LTL / USD as at 31 December 2007,

39



24

25

AB Vilniaus Vingis
Annual accounts for the year 2007

Notes to the annual accounts

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to mainiain investor, creditor
and market confidence and (¢ sustain future development of the business. The Board of
Directors moniters the return on capital and proposes the level of dividends to ordinary
shareholders based on the Company’s financial results and strategic plans.

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year.

Derivative financial instraments

On 28 November 2005, the Company entered info a copper swap transaction with a bank.
The derivative financial instrument was designated as held for trading.

According to the contract, the Company agreed to exchange standard copper quantity of 100
tones at a fixed price for the same notional quantity at its average monthly price (by
reference to the London Metal Exchange) at 15 monthly intervals, the first being set on 31
December 2005 and the last on 28 February 2007, The total notional quantity of copper
under the contract is 1,500 tones.

On 31 December 2005, the Company realized USIY 63 thousand or 184 tLitas gain on the
first exchange of 100 tones notional quantity of copper. As at 31 December 2005, the
outstanding not matured swap of 1,400 tones is stated at fair value, estimated by reference fo
a quolation of the contract market value received from the bank as at 31 December 2005,
The fair value of the contract is USD 400 thousand or 1,165 tLitas. The fair value of the
swap contract reflected in the balance sheet is USID 463 thousand or 1,349 tLitas (including
the receivable for the matured part of the contract of USD 63 thousand or 184 tLitas).

On 19 January 2006, the swap contract was cancelled partially, i.e. except for 100 tones
swap maturing on 31 January 2006. A gain of USD 539 thousand or 1,535 tl.itas was
realized on the cancellation. The amount was paid to the Company on 23 January 2006.

On maturity of the not cancelled part of the mentioned swap contract on 31 January 2006,
the Company realized USD 79 thousand or 225 tLitas gain, which was paid to the Company
on 2 February 2000.

On 16 January 2006, the Company entered into a copper swap transaction with a bank for a
notional quantity of 2,250 tones of copper, maturing on 30 Aprii 2007. The swap was
cancelled on 25 January 2006. The Company realized a gain of USD 108 thousand or 303
tl.itas on the cancellation, which was paid to the Company on 27 January 2006.
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Derivative financial instruments (cont’d)

On 25 July 2006, the Company entered into a new copper swap transaction with a bank,
According to the contract, the Company agreed to exchange standard copper quantity of 50
tones at a fixed price for the same notional quantity at its average monthly price (by
reference to the London Metal Exchange) at 15 monthly intervals, the first being set on 2
August 2006 and the last on 31 October 2007. The total notional quantity of copper under the
coniract is 750 tones.

As at 31 December 2006, the Company suffered USD 18 thousand or 45 tLitas loss on the
first exchange of 200 tones notional quantity of copper. As at 31 December 2006, the
outstanding not matured swap of 500 tones is stated at fair value, estimated by reference to a
quotation of the contract market value received from the bank as at 31 December 2006. The
fair value of the contract is USID 611 thousand or 1,607 tLitas. The fair value of the swap
contract reflected in the balance sheet is USD 654 thousand or 1,721 thitas (including the
payable for the matured part of the contract of USD 43 thousand or 114 tLitas).

On 1 March 2007, the swap contract was cancelled. A loss of USD 549 thousand or 1,442
tl.itas incurred on the cancellation. The amount was paid by the Company on 5 March 2007,
Before the swap was cancelled, the company has suffered additional loss of USD 187
thousand or 487 tLitas in year 2007.

After fair value of copper swap accrued as at 31 December 2006 has been recognized in
2007 year result, final result related to derivative financial instruments amounted to 323
tL.itas Joss.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between knowledgeable willing parties on an arm’s length transaction, other than
in forced or liquidation sale. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices, discounted
cash flow models and option pricing models as appropriate.

The fair value of the assets and liabilities reported in the balance sheet as at 31 December
2007 do not differ significantly from their carrying amounts except for immovable property,

plant and equipment whose amortized cost differs significantly from its fair value.

Financial assets as at 31 December 2007;

i.ilas Carrying amount Fair value

Trade receivables 1,744,839 1,744,840
Other receivables 54,209,783 54,209,782
Cash and cash equivalents 34,192 34,192
Total 55,988,814 55,988,814
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20 Fair value of financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial Habilitics as at 31 December 2007;

Litas Carrying amount Fair value

Trade payables 335,214 335215

Other liabilities 136,616 136,615

Total 471,830 471,830
27  Related parties

The related parties of the Company are its shareholders holding an interest that gives control

or significant influence over the Company (refer to information on the composition of the

Board below), the subsidiaries UAB Vilniaus Vingio Gija, UAB Vilniaus Vingio

Mechanika, UAB Vilniaus Vingio Geba, members of the key management personnel in AB

Vilniaus Vingis and of the subsidiaries, as well as close members of the family of the

mentioned shareholders and the management personnel.

As at 31 December 2007, the Company’s Board includes two members from Hermis Capital

AR, one {from AB Finasta [moniy Finansai.

During 2006, the Company paid in the share capital of the newly established subsidiaries and

transferred non-current assets to them for increase in their share capital.

Purchases and sales to the Company’s current and former subsidiaries are disclosed below:
Cempany | Type of transaction | 2607 | 2006
Purchases:

UAB Vilniaus Vingio Gija Production services 0 4,697,273
UAB Vilniaus Vingio Gija Other services 0 43,486
UAB Vilniaus Vingio Mechanika Production services 0 8,590
UJAB Vilniaus Vingio Mechanika Other services 0 65,278
UAB Vilniaus Vingio Geba Production services 3,093,865 298,178
Total: 3,093,865 5,112,805
Sales:
UAB Vilniaus Vingio Gija Materials 0 5,563,473
UAB Vilniaus Vingio Gija Costs compensation 0 627,410
UAB Vilniaus Vingio Gija Consultation services 0 592,954
UAB Vilniaus Vingio Gija Premises lease 0 510,837
UAB Vilniaus Vingic Gija Other services 0 104,673
UAB Vilniaus Vingio Gija Non-current asset 0 19,723
UAB Vilniaus Vingio Mechanika Materials 0 678,262
UAB Vilniaus Vingio Mechanika Consultation services G 153,801
UAB Vilniaus Vingio Mechanika Costs compensation 0 149,294
UAB Vilniaus Vingio Mechanika Premises lease 0 137,014
UAB Vilniaus Vingio Mechanika Other services 0 6,518
UAB Vilniaus Vingio Mechanika Non-~current asset 0 788
UAB Vilniaus Vingio Geba Other services 239,041 72,298
Total: 235,041 8,617,051
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Related parties (cont’d)

Movable non current assets with the book value amounting 1o 206 tLitas were sold to the AB
Vilniaus Vingis former directors in 2006 year. Saje income for items sold amount to 77
iLitas, therefore the company has suffered the loss of 129 tLitas from these sale operations.

Both the subsidiaries of the Company UAB Vilniaus Vingio Gija and UAB Vilniaus Vingio
Mechanika were bought by former directors of the Company. Loss from the subsidiaries sold
amounts 1o 4,806 tl.itas. In addition, amounts receivable from these companies for material,
services provided in 2006 year, amounting to 3,839 tLitas have been wrilten off,

For payment to the management refer to Note 7.

Subsequent events

On 28 and 29 February 2008, loan agreements signed with UAB Hermis Capital and AB
Invalda have been changed. According to new conditions, loans repayment date has been

changed from 1 March 2008 to 1 June 2008.

There were no other subsequent events afier the balance sheet date, which require
adjustments or additional disclosure in the financial statements.

Contingencies

The Company issued legal claims to customers regarding the settlement of overdue
receivable for amount of 1,114 tLitas.

The Company issued a claim to its previous employees due to their fraudulent activitics
within the Company. The claim issued amounted to 578 tLitas. As to court decision taken on

4 September 2007, only fine of 2 tLitas has been imposed to the former employees.

Uncertainty

Financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the Company has
sufficient funds to continue its activity.

Production and rent activity has been ceased afler real estate, machinery and equipment of
the Company have been sold in first half of year 2007,

Cash funds received from the sale of non current assets are currently lent to shareholders for
an annual interest of 4%.

Activity of the Company will depend on the sharcholders® decisions regarding the operation
of the Company as a going concern.,
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Reporting period for which the report has been prepared

The report has been prepared for the 2007,

Main data about the Issuer

Name of the Issuer Vilniaus Vingis AR

Code in the Register of Enterprises 1225 97830

Authorised capital 36492 420 LTL

Address Savanoriu ave. 176, LT-03154 Vilnius, Lithuania
Telephone +370 52392500

Fax +370 523925 33

E-mail address info(@vingis.|t

Internet address www.vingis. It

L.egal and orpanisational form public company (joini-stock company)

Date and place of registration 25 February 1994, State Enterprise Centre of Registers
DPate and place of re-registration 28 September 2001, State Enterprise Centre of Registers
Register Register of Legal Persons

Activity

The Company is involved in the manufacture of electronic components.

Share capital

The share capital comprises 9,123,105 ordinary shares with a nominal value of Litas 4 each
and the total share capital amounts to Litas 36,492,420,

There is the Agreement with Finasta JSC FMI due to arrangement of securities invoices.

Shareholders
Omn 31 December 2007 the total number of Vilniaus Vingis AB sharcholders was 656.
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Shareholders who heid more than 5 per cent of the Issuer’s authorised capital or / and votes
on 31 December 2007:

Name of the shareholder (name of the
company, its type, address of head
office, code in the Register of
Enterprises)

Number of
ordinary
registered shares
owned by the
right of
ownership

Part in the
authorised
capital, %

Part of votes
given by the
shares owned
by the right of
ownership, %

Part of votes of
shareholders
that are acting
jointly, %

HERMIS CaPiTal UAB
A Tuméno Str.4,
01109 Viinjus, Lithuania
1256 99527

5,533,191 60.65

63.99

FINANCIAL SPECTRUM [NVESTMENT
Konstituciios Ave. 23,
[.T-08103 Vilnius, Lithuania
132209272

1,709,287 i8.74

19.77

SIAULIY BANKAS

Tilzés Str 149 Sjauliai, Lithuania
112025254

$05,000 9.92

10.47

VILNIAUS VINGIS AB
Savanoriu Ave. 176,
[.T-03154 Vilnius, Lithuania
1225 97830

475,817 522

Main characteristics of the shares of Vilniaus Vingis AI3

e ! X Nominal value,  Total nominal
Type of shares ISIN Code Number of shares LTL value, LTI,
Ordinary registered shares LTO000103673 9,123,105 4.00 36,492,420.00

Trading shares of Vilniaus Vingis AB

Price, LTL Turnover, LTL Total turnover
Period - Date of the .
High Lowest Ija'st Bigaest Smal La‘st last session | Number of LTL
est se8si0n lest | session shares
1* quarter of 2007 6.15 5.66 6.00 5,664,051 0 0 130.03.2007 | 3,200,526 | 18,641,120.83
2" quarter of 2007 6.20 5.45 6.09 11,020,831 0 0129.66.2007 | 2,875,455 17,144,259.52
3n quarter of 2007 6,00 5.50 5941 316,613.88 27.09.2007 145,733 858,554.45
4" guarter of 2007 6.21 5.94 6.21 1,021,700 28.12.2007 208,213 1,251,162.36

Capitalisation of shares of Vilniaus Vingis AB, LTL

Last session date

Capitalisation, LTL

30.03.2007 54,738,630.00
29.06.2007 55,559,709.45
27.09.2007 54,191,243.70
28.12.2007 56,564,482.05

Members of the managing bodies
Vilniaus Vingis AB has the General Meeting, a single-person management organ — the
manager (General Director) and collegial management organ — the Board. The Supervisory
Board is not formed in the Company.
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The Board is elected by the General Meeting for a term of 4 years. The Board has 3
members.

The Board clects and removes from office the manager of the Company, fixes his salary,
approves his job description, provides incentives for him and imposes penalties.

Position held, names and surnames, data about participation in the Issuer’s authorised capital

Name, surname Position held Share of the capital Share of the votes
held, % held, %
THE BOARD
Nerijus Dagilis Chairman -
Darius Janulevicius Member - ' -
Marija Leiloniené Member - -
ADMINISTRATION
Neringa Menditinieng General Director - -
Svetlana Ivanova Chief Accountant - -

2007.02.15 Sales of production of Vilniaus Vingis AB

2007.03.19 Agenda of general meeting of shareholders

2007.03.20 DISCLOSURE ABOUT ACQUISITION OF A BLOCK OF SHARES
2007.03.20 DISCLOSURE ABOUT DISPOSAL OF A BLOCK OF SHARES

2007.03.20 DISCLOSURE ABOUT ACQUISITION OF A BLOCK OF SHARES
20:07.03.29 Regarding one's own shares

2007.04.04 Supplemented agenda of the General Meeting

2007.04.06 Audited activity results of Vilniaus Vingis AB in 2006

2007.04.06 Draft resolutions of the General Meeting

2007.04.11 Finacial Statements for the year 2006 and annual Report

2007.04.12 Sales of the first quarter in 2007

2007.04.17 Vilniaus Vingis AB Major shareholder announcements

2007.04.18 Company Announcement

2007.04.20 Resolutions of the ordinary General Shareholder's Meeting

2007.04.23 Notification acquisition of a block of shares

2007.04.24 Vilniaus Vingio Geba UADB cease the production of deflection yokes
2007.04.24 Vilniaus Vingio Geba ceases the production of not promising deflection yokes,
2007.05.09 Vilniaus Vingis AB Board's meeting

2007.05.28 Notification disposal/acquisition of a block of shares

2007.05.31 Financial statements for the I quarter 2007

2007.07.24 Preliminary results of activities for first half year of 2007

2007.07.26 Due to Tender Offer

2007.08.31 Consolidated financial statements and interim report for the first half of 2007
2007.09.25 Correction: Financial statements for the 1 quarter 2007

2007.10.25 Preliminary results of activities for the nine months of 2007

2007.11.08 Intermediate consolidated financial statemeats for the nine months of 2007
2007.11.23 CORRECTION: Consolidated financial statements and interim report for the first half of 2007
2007.11.27 Notification acquisition (disposal) of a block of shares

2007.11.28 CORRECTION: Intermediate consolidated financial statements for the nine months of 2007
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Main information about Company’s results for year 2007

The last year for the Company was the year of great changes.

The situation in the market has significantly worsened, if to compare with the year 2006, and
was distinguished for the dramatic change in the decrease of production in the deflection
yokes segment.

With a view to concentrate on the direct activity only, i.e. production of deflection yokes,
The Company sold real estate owned (by the ownership right) by AB Vilniaus Vingis.
Having called the tender, the complex of real estate in Vilnius (Savanoriy av.), including
administrative, production and warehousing buildings and premises, was sold for 59 million
Litas. The profit generated by the Company from sales of the buildings amounted to 43,26
million Litas.

Due 1o critically decreased orders for deflection yokes, on 25 April 2007, the Board of AB
Vilniaus Vingis accepted a decision to stop production of deflection yokes and liquidate the
subsidiary UADB Vilniaus Vingio Geba, the production of deflection yokes to which was
transferred at the end of 2006. AB Vilniaus Vingis owns (by ownership right) 100 % of the
shares of UAB Vilniaus Vingio Geba. The subsidiary started its activity on { December
2006. The authorized capital of the established subsidiary amounted to 50 tLitas. It was
divided in 50,000 ordinary registered shares with a nominal value of 1 Litas each. The
authorized capital of the subsidiary was paid in by monetary contributions. In December
2000, the authorized capital of UAB Vilniaus Vingio Geba was increased by non-monetary
contribution consisting of non-current movable assets of AB Vilniaus Vingis, related to
production of deflection yokes. AB Vilniaus Vingis used the non-monetary contribution
while paying for 856 000 ordinary registered shares of UAB Vilniaus Vingio Geba, the total
nominal value and the emission price of which amounted to 856,000 Litas, Currently, the
share capital of UAB Vilniaus Vingio Geba is 906 tLitas. Besides, 258 employees left for the
subsidiary UAB Vilniaus Vingio Geba, Having announced liquidation of the Company, 256
employees were dismissed in 2007, and redundancy payments performed amounted to 1.1
million Litas. At the moment, the liquidation procedure of the subsidiary is being performed.

It wag expected that sales of the Company in 2007 would make 8.5 million Litas, profit from
other activity, after the real estate of The Company is sold, would reach 43 million Litas, and
profit before taxes in 2007 would make 17 million Litas. Investment in renovation of the
production and diversification has not been foreseen.

The objectives of the Company for 2007 have been achieved, i.e. the production sales
amount to 6.2 million Litas {or by 36.7 million Litas less than in 2006) and the profit before
taxes amounted to 34.3 million Litas. Decisions of the management accepted in due time to
stop unprofitable production of deflection yokes resulted in higher profit than expected.

Last year production of deflection yokes comprised 416.7 thousand units or by 86.6% less
than in 2006.

In 2007 the Company incurred a loss of 1.3 million Litas from the main activities, In 2006,
the loss comprised 1.4 million Litas. The results from the main activities were negatively
influenced by the following reasons:

The Company has been performing production of deflection yokes only until the 25" of
April;

As of April 2007, the Company had no income related to rent of property.
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Having stopped the production and having sold the buildings, the Company was constantly
decreasing the number of employees. During 2007, the number of employees, working in
Al3 Vilniaus Vingis and UAB Vilniaus Vingio Geba decreased from 306 to 8. At the end of
the year, AB Vilniaus Vingis cmployed 6 persons and UAB Vilniaus Vingio Geba — 2
employees.

Operating costs of the accounting year, if compared to 2006, decreased by 7.4 million Litas
due to decreased sales and other administrative costs. Operating costs were negatively
influenced by redundancy compensations paid to employees of The Company amounting to
0.3 million Litas (excluding social insurance tax).

When performing other activity, the Company generated the profit of 37.6 miltlion Litas,
including the profit from sales of the buildings of 43.3 million Litas, and foss from sales of
other tangible non-current movable assets comprised 5 million Litas, In 2007, the Company
sold all technological equipment for production of deflection yokes, other facilities and
machinery. The equipment was sold with loss, as the equipment is specific and can be used
only for production of deflection yokes.

Profit of 1.3 million Litas was generated from financial and investing activities, including the
interest from loans granted of 1.6 million Litas, prefit from sales of financial assets reached
08.5 thitas, interest paid to banks amounted to 35.2 tLitas and currency exchange loss

amounted to 13.3 tlitas.

Realized loss related to swap copper contracts in 2007 amounted to 322.7 tLitas. The swap
agreement was cancelled on 1 March 2007,

During 2007, the cash flows of the Company went up. The Company has no labilities to
banks. Besides, trade creditors decreased significantly from 1.6 million Litas to 0.3 million
Litas, i.e. 1.3 million Litas.

As at the end of the accounting year, the Company has own shares amounting to 475,817
units, and it makes 5.22% of the authorized capital. The nominal vajue of the shares held is
1,903,268.00 Litas, and the acquisition value is of 3,946,668.00 Litas.

The Company had neither branches nor representative offices during the accounting year.

Further activity of the Company will depend on the shareholders® decisions regarding the
operation of the Company as a going concern.

Currently, the Company invests at a profit, seeking maximum financial benefit.

It is expected that in 2008 the Company will receive up to 1 million Litas interest for the
loans granted.

Managing Director Neringa Menéiliniené
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Disclosure form concerning the compliance with the Governance

Code for the company Vilniaus Vingis AB listed on the regulated

market

The company Vilniaus Vingis AB, following Articie 21 paragraph 3 of the Law on Securities of the Republic

of Lithuania and item 20.5 of the Trading Rules of the Viinius Stock Exchange, discloses its compliance with

the Governance Code, approved by the VSE for the companies listed on the regulated market, and its specific

provisions.

PRINCIPLES/ RECOMMENDATIONS

YES/NO
NOT
APPLICAD
LE

COMMENTARY

Principle It Basic Provisions

optimizing over time shareholder value.

The overriding objective of a company should be to operate in

common interests of all the sharcholders by

I.i. A company should adopt and make public the

bodies should ensure that the rights and interests of
persens other than the company’s shareholders (e.g.
employees, creditors, suppliers, <clients, local
community), participating in or connected with the
company’s operation, are duly respected.

company’s development strategy and objectives by Yes Illjm t(l:ompa;}y al}nouclll.cfs.b tt}?g fo(gcca.sl anc}
clearly declaring how the company intends to meet the %,Jle(.; 1ve; QIEUEF N i,;l whon BWICC, 0
. - o i LXcnange C i
interests of its shareholders and optimize sharecholder TInius “stock Lxchange 1he company can't o
value disclose some features of  strategy due 1o
’ competitive fight in the market,
1.2. Al management bodies of a company should act v 1 S ¢ ied
in furtherance of the declared strategic objectives in € ¢ e colmpani/ﬂs organs ob‘g,ot\{cmmegt d]_'e unite
view of the need to optimize shareholder value, 0 implement the main objectives and tasks.
1.3. A company’s supervisory and management - , .
bodies should act in close co-operation in order to Yes ‘Ithe cmgp{;my.‘s. B‘o%c.id‘ac?epés a]dl, nnpotl.tani
attain maximum benefit for the company and its ffems and decisions. Lramary Board's meetings
i ) are made one time per quarter, extraordinary —
shareholders. St
acc, to the proposal by Board’s Chairman due to
acceptance on discussions of imporlant items
and solutions.
1.4. A company’s supervisory and management v The company is seeking to guarantee the rights
cSs

of all main concerned groups.
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Principle 1I: The corporate governance framework

The corporate governance framework should ensure the strategic guidance of the company, the effective
oversight of the company’s management bodies, an appropriate balance and distribution of functions between
the company’s bodies, protection of the sharcholders’® inferests.

2.1. Besides obligatory bodies provided for in the Law
on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania ~ a
general shareholders’ meeting and the chiefl executive
officer, it is recommended that a company should set
up both a collegial supervisory body and a collegial
management body. The setting up of cotlegial bodies
for supervision and management facilitates clear
separation of management and supervisory functions
in the company, accountability and control on the part
of the chief executive officer, which, In its turn,
facilitate & more efficient and transparent management
process.

No

A Supervisory Board is not formed in the
Company.

Generat Shareholders Meeting for which the
Board is accounted cagries out the control of
Board.

2.2. A coilegial management body is responsible for
the strategic management of the company and
performs other key functions of corporate governance,
A collegial supervisory body is responsible for the
effective supervision of the company’s management
bodies.

Yes

The collegiate government body is formed in
company - Management Board.

2.3. Where a company chooses to form only one
collegial body, it is recommended that it should be a
supervisory body, i.e. the supervisory board. In such a
case, the supervisory board is responsible for the
effective monitoring of the functions performed by the
company’s chiefl executive officer,

No

The company doesn’t keep this
recommendation, only the collegiate body —
Board is formed.

2.4, The collegial supervisory body to be elected by
the general shareholders” meeting should be set up
and should act in the manner defined in Principles 1H
and IV. Where a company shouid decide not to set up
a coliegial supervisory body but rather a collegial
management body, i.¢. the board, Principles [H and 1V
should apply to the board as long as that does not
contradict the essence and purpose of this body.'

Yes

The company keeps the largest majority,
indicated in provided statutes principle [1,
however, doesn’t keep provided statutes due to
forming of committees in principie IV,

' Provisions of Principles 11T and IV are more applicable to those instances when the general sharcholders’
meeting elects the supervisory board, i.e. a body that is essentially formed to ensure oversight of the company’s
board and the chief executive officer and to represent the company’s shareholders. However, in case the company
does not form the supervisory board but rather the board, most of the recommendations set out in Principles 11T
and IV become important and applicable to the board as well. Furthermore, it should be neted that certain
recommendations, which are in their cssence and nature applicable exclusively to the supervisory board, should
not be applicd to the board, as the competence and functions of these bodies according to the Law on Companics
of the Republic of Lithuania (Official Gazetre, 2003, No 123-5574) are different. For instance, item 3.1 of the
Code concerning oversight of the management bodies applies to the extent it concerns the oversight of the chief
exccutive officer of the company, but not of the board itself, item 4.1 of the Code concerning recommendations to
the management bodies applies to the extent it relates to the provision of recommendations to the company’s
chief executive officer; item 4.4 of the Code concerning independence of the collegial body clected by the general
meeting from the company’s management bodies is applied te the extent it concerns independence from the chiel

executive officer,
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2.5. Company’s management and supervisory bodies
should comprisc such number of board (exccutive
dircetors) and supervisory (non-executive directors)
board members that no individual or small group of
individuals can dominate decisicn-making on the part
of these bodies.”

Yes

The company’s Board is formed of 3 members.
Such number of Board is sufficient,

2.6. Non-executive directors or members of the
supervisory board should be appointed for specified
terms subject {o individual re-election, al maximum
intervals provided for in the Lithuanian legislation
with a view to ensuring necessary development of
professional experience and sufficiently frequent
reconfirmation of their status. A possibility to remove
them should also be stipulated however this procedure
should not be easier than the removal procedure for an
executive director or a member of the management
board.

Yes

The members of company’s Board are electing
for maximum time of office for four years acc,
to law of joint stock companies of Lithuanian
Republic. There are any limitations for
member’s re-election,

2.7. Chairman of the collegial body clected by the
general shareholders’” meeting may be a person whose
current or past office constitutes no obstacle to
conduct independent and impartial supervision. Where
a company should decide not to set up a supervisory
board but rather the board, it is recommended that the
chairman of the board and chiefl executive officer of
the company should be a different person. Former
company’s chiel executive officer should not be
immediately nominated as the chairman of the
collegial body elected by the general sharehoiders’
meeting. When a company chooses to departure from
these recommendations, it should furnish informaticn
on the measures it has taken to ensure impartiality of
the supervision.

Yes

Company’s chairman is not the member of
Board. There are no any obstacies for
independent and impartial supervision.

Principle III: The order of the formation of a collegial body to be elecied by a general shareholders® meeting

The order of the formation a collegial body to be clected by a general shareholders® meeting should ensure
representation of minority shareholders, accountability of (his body to the sharcholders and objective
moniforing of the company’s operation and its management bodies.’

3.1. The mechanism of the formation of a collegial
body to be elected by a general shareholders’ meeting
(hereinafter in this Principle referred to as the
‘coliegial body™) should ensure objective and fair
monitoring of the company’s management bodies as
well as representation of minority shareholders.

Yes

The mechanism of the formation of Board
allows ensuring suitable company’s supervision,
The members of Board can become only persons
of proper qualification,

The members of Board are not company’s
workers. Besides, these members are the

* Definitions ‘executive divector’ and ‘nom-exeeutive director are used in cases when a company has only one

coliegial body.

3 Attention should be drawn o the fact that in the situation where the collegial body elected by the general
shareholders” meeting is the board, i1 is natural that being a management body it should ensure oversight not of
all management bodies of the company, but only of the single-persen body of management, i.c. the company’s
chief exceutive officer. This note shall apply in respect of item 3.1 as well,
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representatives  of sharcholders, which have
more than 5 % of the votes and that allow 1o
ensure the more efficient protection system of
shareholder’s interests.

3.2, Names and surnames of the candidates to become
members of a collegial body, information about their
education, qualification, professional background,
positions taken and potential conflicts of interest
should be disclosed early enough before the general
shareholders’ meeting so that the shareholders would
have sufficient time to make an informed voting
decision. All factors affecting the candidate’s
independence, the sample list of which is set out in
Recommendation 3.7, should be also disclosed. The
collegial body should also be informed on any
subsequent changes in the provided information. The
collegial body should, on yearly basis, coilect data
provided in this item on its members and disclose this
in the company’s annual report.

Yes

Information about the members of Board is
presented in the company’s recurrent reports. In
the future the information about proposed
candidates before the future election of members
of collegial bedy is planning to disclose fogether
with meeting’s material.

3.3. Should a person be nominated for members of a
collegial body, such nomination shouid be followed
by the disclosure of information on candidate’s
particular competence's relevant to his/her service on
the collegial body. In order sharcholders and investors
are able to ascertain whether member’s competence is
further relevant, the collegial body should, in iis
annual report, disclose the information on ifs
composition and particular competences of individual
members which are relevant to their service on the
coilegial body.

Yes

3.4. In order to maintain a proper balance in terms of
the current qualifications possessed by its members,
the collegial body should determine its desired
composition with regard to the company’s structure
and activities, and have this periodically evaluated.
The collegial body should ensure that it is composed
of members who, as a whole, have the required
diversity of knowledge, judgement and expericnce 1o
complete their tasks properly. The members of the
audit committee, collectively, should have a recent
knowledge and relevant experience in the fields of
finance, accounting and/or audit for the stock
exchange listed companies.

Yes

The members of Board have the experience in
company’s governing, the versatile information
and experience to futfi} the tasks in proper way.

3.5. All new members of the collegial body should be
offered a tailored program focused on intreducing a
member with his/her duties, corporate organization
and activities, The collegial body should conduct an
annual review to identify fields where its members
need to update their skills and knowledge.

Yes

The present members of Board have the
governing experience of companies. If the new
members will be elected, they will be acquainted
with company, its activity, specific features of
governing,.
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3.6. In order to ensure that all material conflicts of
interest related with a member of the collegial body
are resolved properly, the coliegial body should
comprise & sufficient’ number of independent’
members.

3.7. A member of the collegial body should be
considered to be independent only if he is free of any
business, family or other relationship with the
company, its controlling shareholder or the
management of either, that creates a conflict of
interest such as to impair his judgement. Since all
cases when member of the collegial body is likely to
become dependant are impossible to list, moreover,
relationships and circumstances associated with the
determination of independence may vary amongst
companies and the best practices of solving this
problem are yet to evolve in the course of time,
assessment of independence of a member of the
collegial body should be based on the contents of the
refationship and circumstances rather than their form.
The key criteria for identifying whether a member of
the collegial body can be considered to be
independent are the following:

1) He/she is not an executive dircclor or member
of the board (if a coliegial body elecled by
the general sharcholders’ meeting is the
supervisory board) of the company or any
associated company and has not been such
during the last five years;

2)Helshe is not an employee of the company or
some any company and has not been such
during the last three years, except for cases
when a member of the collegial body does
not belong to the senior management and
was clected 1o the collegial body as a
representative of the employees;

3)Helshe s not receiving or has been not
receiving significant additional remuneration
from the company or associated company
other than remuneration for the office in the
coilegial body. Such additional remuneration
includes participation in share options or
some other performance based pay systems;

Yes

No

Till now the independence of elected members
of Board wasn’t evaluated in the company and
the content of sufficiency of independent
member’s wasn’t discussed,

At general Meeting of shareholders the members
of Board elected the persons, who are
independent and acting secking the benefit for
company, however don’t comrespond (o
recommendation of independence of this code.

" The Code does not previde for a concrete number of independent members 1o comprise 2 collegial body, Many
codes in foreign countries fix a concrete number of independent members (e.g. at feast 1/3 or 1/2 of the members
of the collegial body) lo comprise the collegial body. However, having regard 1o the novelty of the institution of
independent members i Lithuania and potential problems in finding and e¢lecting a concrete number of
independent members, the Code provides for a more flexible werding and allows the companies themselves to
decide what number of independent members is sufficient. Of course, a targer number of independent members in
a collegial bedy is encouraged and will constifute an exampie of more suitable corporate governance.

3§ is notable that i some companics ail members of the coliegial body may, duc 1o a very smatt number of
minority shareholders, be elected by the voles of the majotity sharcholder or a few major sharcholders. But even a
member of the collegial body clected by the majority sharcholders may be considered independent if he/she meets

the independence criteria set out in the Code.
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it does not include compensation payments
for the previcus office in the company
{provided that such payment is no way
related with later position) as per pension
plans (inclusive of deferred compensations);

4} Heishe is not a controlling shareholder or
representative of such shareholder {control as
defined in the Council Directive 83/349/EEC
Article 1 Part 1);

5)He/she does not have and did not have any
material business relations with the company
or associated company within the past year
directly or as a partner, shareholder, director
or superior employee of the subject having
such relationship, A subject is considered to
have business relations when it is a major
supplier or service provider {inclusive of
financial, legal, counselling and consulting
services), major client or organizaiion
receiving  significant paymenis {from the
company or its group;

6) He/she is not and has not been, during the last
three years, partner or employee of the
current or former external audit company of
the company or associated company;

7) He/she is not an executive director or member
of the board in some other company where
executive director of the company or member
of the board (if a coliegial body clected by
the general shareholders’ meeting is the
supervisory board) is non-executive director
or member of the supervisory board, hefshe
may not also have any other material
relationships with executive directors of the
company that arise from their participation in
activities of other companies or bodies;

8) He/she has not been in the position of a
member of the collegial body for over than
12 years;

9) He/she is not a close relative to an executive
director or member of the board (if a
collegial body elected by the general
sharcholders’ meeting is the supervisory
hoard) or to any person listed in above items
1 to 8. Close relative is considered to be a
spouse (common-law spouse), children and
parenls.
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3.8. The determination of what constitutes
independence is fundamentally an issue for the
collegial body itself to determine. The collegial body
may decide that, despite a particular member meets all
the criteria of independence laid down in this Code, be
cannot be considered independent due to special
personal or company-related circumstances.

3.9 Necessary infermation on conclusions the
collegial body has come tc in its determination of
whether a particular member of the body shouid be
considered to be independent should be disclosed.
When a person is nominated to become a member of
the collegial body, the company should disclose
whether it considers the person to be independent.
When a particular member of the coliegial body does
not meet one or more criteria of independence sel out
in this Code, the company should disclose its reasons
for nevertheless considering the member to be
independent. In addition, the company should
annually disclose which members of the cotlegial
body it considers to be independent.

The Company has not yet applied the practise of
announcing the independence criteria  for
Board’s members.

3.10. When one or more criteria of independence set
out in this Code has not been met throughout the year,
the company should disclose its reasons for
considering a particular member of the collegial body
to be independent, To ensure accuracy of the
information  disclosed in  relation with the
independence of the members of the collegial body,
the company should require independent members to
have their independence periodicaily re-confinmed.

The Company has not yet applied the practise of
announcing the independence criteria  for
Board’s members.

3.11. In order to remunerate members of a collegial
body for their work and participation in the meetings
of the collegial body, they may be remunerated from
the company’s funds® The general sharcholders’
meeting  should approve the amount of such
remuneration.

No urgent

The participation of board’s members in
meetings and their work is not remunerated from
of company’s funds.

81t is notable that currently it is not yet completely clear, in what form members of the supervisory board or the
board may be remunerated for their work in these bodies. The Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania
(Official Gazerte, 2003, No [23-8574) provides that members of the supervisory board or the board may be
remunecrated for their work in the supervisory board or the beard by payment of annual bonuses (tantiems) in the
manner prescribed by Articie 59 of this Law, i.c. from the company’s profit. The current wording, contrary o the
wording effective before 1 January 2004, eliminales Lhe exclusive requirement that annual bonuses (lantiems)
should be the ondy form of the company’s compensation to members of the supervisery board or the board. So it
seems that the Law contains no prehibition to remunerate members of the supervisory board or the board for their
work in other forms, besides bonuses, although this possibility is not expressly stated either.
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Principle 1V: The duties and liabilitics of a collegial body cleeted by the general shareholders’ meeting

The corporate governance framework should ensure proper and effective functioning of the collegial body
clected by the general sharcholders’ meeting, and the powers granfed to the collegial body should ensure
effective monitoring’ of the company’s management bodies and protection of interests of all the company’s

shareholders.

4.1. The collegial body elected by the general
sharcholders’ meeting (hereinafter in this Principle
referred to as the ‘collegial body’y should ensure
integrity and transparency of the company’s financial
statements and the control system. The collegial body
should issue recommendations to the company’s
management bodies and monitor and control the
company’s management performance.®

Yes

The company’s Manager presents the account
for the Board not far-between one time per
quarter and pets Board’s recommendations,

4.2. Members of the collegial body should act in good
faith, with care and responsibility for the benefit and
in the interests of the company and its sharcholders
with due regard to the interests of employees and
public welfare. Independent members of the collegial
body should (a) under all circumstances maintain
independence of their analysis, decision-making and
actions (b} do not seek and accept any unjustified
privileges that might compromise their independence,
and (c) clearly express their objections should a
member consider that decision of the collegial body is
against the interests of the company. Should a
collegial body have passed decisions independent
member has serious doubts about, the member should
make adeguate conclusions. Should an independent
member resign from his office, he should explain the
reasons in a letter addressed to the collegial body or
audit commitiee and, if necessary, respective
company-not-pertaining body (institation).

Yes

The members of the Board act i their good will
as regards the Company and carry out ifs
activities in compliance with the Company’s
inferests, exerting every effort to preserve their
independence while adopting the resolutions,

? See Footnote 3.

¥ See Footnole 3. In the event the collegial body elected by the general sharcholders” meeting is the board, #
should provide recemmendations te the company’s single-person body of management, i.e. the company’s chief

exccutive officer,
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4.3. Each member should devote sufficient time and
attention to perform his duties as a member of the
collegial body. Each member of the collegial body
shouid limit other professional obligations of his (in
particular any directorships held in other companies)
in such a manner they do not interfere with proper
performance of duties of a member of the collegial
body. In the event a member of the collegial body
should be present in less than a hali” of the meetings
of the collegial body throughout the financial year of
the company, shareholders of the company should be
notified.

Yes

The Board’s members perform its duties
properly, taking part in meetings and devote
sufficient {ime to perform its duties, as &
member of Board. The majority of members
take part in the meetings.

4.4, Where decisions of a coilegial body may have a
different effect on the company’s sharcholders, the
collegial body should treat all sharcholders impartially
and fairly. I should ensure that sharcholders are
properly informed on the company’s affairs,
strategies, risk management and resolution of conflicts
of interest. The company should have a clearly
established rele of members of the collegial body
when communicating  with and committing to
shareholders.

Yes

The company keep indicated recommendations,

4.5. It is recommended that transactions (except
insignificant ones due to their low value or concluded
wlen carrying out routine operations in the company
under usual conditions), concluded between the
company and its sharebolders, members of the
supervisory or managing bodies or other natural or
legal persons that exert or may exer( infivence on the
company’s management should be subject to approval
of the collegial body. The decision concerning
approval of such fransactions should be deemed
adopted only provided the majority of the independent
members of the collegial body voted for such a
decision,

Yes

The transactions, concluded between the
company and shareholders, members of the
supervisory or managing bodies or other natural
or legal persons that exerf or may exert influence
on  company’s management are approved
following the companies regulations.

It is notabie that comparies can make this requirement more stringent and provide that shareholders should be
informed about failure to participate at the meetings of the collegial body if, for instance, a member of the
collegial body participated at less than 2/3 or 3/4 of the meetings. Such measures, which ensure active
participation in the meetings of the collegial body, are encouraged and will constitule an example of more

suitable corporate governance.
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4.6, The collegial body shouid be independent in
passing decisions that are significant for the
company’s operations and strategy. Taken separately,
the collegial body should be independent of the
company’s management bodies'®. Members of the
collegial body should act and pass decisions without
an outside influence from the persons who have
elected it. Companies should ensure that the collegial
body and ils committees are provided with sufficient
administrative and financial resources to discharge
their duties, inciuding the right to obtain, in particular
from employees of the company, all the necessary
information or 1o seek independent legal, accounting
or any other advice on issues pettaining to the
competence of the collegial body and its commitiees.

Yes

The company’s Board has own financial
conditions for its work and is independent of
company’s managers.

4.7, Activities of the collegial body should be
organized in a manner that independent members of
the collegial body could have major influence in
relevant areas where chances of occurrence of
conflicts of interest are very high. Such areas to be
considered as highly relevant are issues of nomination
of company’s directors, determination of directors’
remuneration  and control  and  assessment of
company’s audit. Therefore when the mentioned
issugs are attributable to the competence of the
collegial body, it is recommended that the coliegial
body should establish nomination, remuneration, and
audit committees. Companies should ensure that the
functions altributable  to  the  nomination,
remuneration, and audit commiliees are carried out.
However they may decide to merge these functions
and set up less than three committees. In such case a
company should explain in detail reasons behind the
selection of alternative approach and how the selected
approach complies with the objectives set forth for the
three different committees. Should the collegial body
of the company comprise small number of members,
the functions assigned to the three committees may be
performed by the collegial body itself, provided that it
meels composition requirements advocated for the
committees and that adequate information is provided
in this respect. In such case provisions of this Code
relating to the committees of the collegial body (in
particular with respect to their role, operation, and
transparency} should apply, where relevant, 1o the
collegial body as a whole.

To simplify the company’s governing the
nomination, remuneration and audit committees
are not formed.

" I the event the coliegiai body elected by the general shareholders’ meeting is the board, the recommendation
concerning its independence from the company’s management bodies applies to the extent it rclates to the
independence from the company’s chief executive officer.
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4.8. The key objective of the committees is to increase
efficiency of the activities of the collegial body by
ensuring that decisions are based on due
consideration, and to help organize its work with a
view fo ensuring that the decisions it takes are free of
material conflicts of interest. Committees should
preseni the coliegial body with recommendations
concerning the decisions of the collegial body.
Nevertheless the final decision shall be adopted by the
coilegial body. The recommendation on creation of
comimittees is not intended, in principle, to constrict
the competence of the coflegial body or to remove the
matters considered from the purview of the collegial
body itself, which remains fully responsible for the
decisions taken in its field of competence.

No

To simplify the company’s poverning the
nomination, remuneration and audit committees
are not formed.

4.9, Committees established by the collegial body
should normally be composed of at least three
members. In companies with small number of
members  of the collegial body, they could
exceptionally be composed of two members. Majority
of the members of each committee should be
constituted from independent members of the collegial
body. In cases when the company chooses not to set
up a supervisory board, remuneration and audit
committees should be entirely comprised of non-
executive directors. Chairmanship and membership of
the committees should be decided with due regard to
the need to ensure that committee membership is
refreshed and that undue reliance is not placed on
particular individuals.

To simplify the company’s governing the
nomination, remuncration and audit committees
are not formed.

4.10. Authority of each of the committees should be
determined by the collegial body, Committees should
perform their duties in line with authority delegated to
them and inform the coilegial body on their activities
and performance on regular basis. Authority of every
commitiee stipulating the role and rights and duties of
the committee should be made public at least once a
year (as part of the information disclosed by the
company annually on its corporate governance
structures and practices). Companies should also
make public annually a statement by existing
committees on their composition, number of meetings
and attendance over the year, and their main activities.
Audit committee should confirm that it is satisfied
with the independence of the audit process and
describe briefly the actions it has taken to reach this
conclusion.

No

To simplify the company’s governing the
nomination, remuneration and audit committecs
are not formed.
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4.11. In order to ensure independence and impartiality
of the commiltees, members of the collegial body that
are not members of the committee shouid commonly
have a right to participate in the meetings of the
comunitiee only if invited by the committee. A
commitiee may invite or demand participation in the
meeting of particular officers or experts. Chairman of
each of the commitiees should have a possibility to
maintain direct communication with the shareholders.
Events when such are to be performed should be
specified in the reguiations for committee activities,

No

To simplify the company’s governing the
nomination, remuneration and audit committees
are not formed.

4.12. Nomination Commitiee.
4.12.1. Key fonctions of the nomination committee
should be the following:

+ Identify and recommend, for the approval of the
coliegial body, candidates to fill board vacancies. The
nomination committee should evalvate the balance of
skills, knowledge and experience on the management
body, prepare a description of the roles and
capabilities required to assume a particular office, and
assess the time commitment expected. Nomination
committee can also consider candidates to members of
the collegial body delegated by the shareholders of the
company;

« Assess on regular basis the structure, size,
composition and performance of the supervisory and
management bodies, and make recommendations 1o
the collegial body regarding the means of achieving
necessary Chﬂl]gCS;

+ Assess on regular basis the skills, knowledge and
experience of individual directors and report on this to
the collegial body;

+ Properly consider issues related 1o succession
planning;

* Review the policy of the management bodies for
selection and appointment of senior management.

4.12.2. Nominalion commiitee should consider
proposals by other parties, including management and
sharcholders. When dealing with issues related to
executive directors or members of the board (if a
coliegiat body elected by the gencral sharcholders’
meeting is the supervisory board) and senior
management, chief executive officer of the company
should be consulted by, and entitled to submit
proposals to the nomination committee.

No

To simplify the company’s governing the
nomination committee is not formed.

4.13. Remuneration Committee.

4,13.1. Key functions of the remuneration commiltee
should be the following:

» Make proposals, for the approval of the collegial
body, on the remuneration policy for members of
management bodies and executive directors. Such
policy should address all forms of compensation,
including the fixed remuneration, performance-based
remuneration schemes, pension arrangements, and
termination  payments.  Proposals  considering
performance-based remuneration schemes should be

No

To simplify the company’s governing the
remuneration commiitee is not formed.
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accompanied with recommendations on the related
objectives and evaluation criteria, with a view to
properly aligning the pay of executive director and
members of the management bodies with the long-
term interests of the sharcholders and the objectives
set by the collegial body;

« Make proposals to the collegial body on the
individual remuneration {or executive directors and
member of management bodies in order their
remunerations are consistent  with company’s
remuneration policy and the evaluation of the
performance of these persons concerned. In doing so,
the committee should be properly informed on the
total compensation obtained by executive directors
and members of the management bodies from the
affiliated companies;

+ Make proposals to the cellegial body on suifable
forms of coniracts for executive directors and
members of the management bodies;

+ Assist the collegial body in oversecing how the
company complies with applicable provisions
regarding the remuneration-related  information
disclosure (in particular the remuneration policy
applied and individval remuneration of directors);

» Make general recommendations to the executive
directors and members of the management bodies on
the level and structure of remuneration for senior
management {as defined by the collegial body) with
regard to the respective information provided by the
executive directors and members of the management
bodies.

4.13.2. With respect to stock options and other share-
based incentives which may be granted to directors or
other employees, the commiltee should:

» Consider general policy regarding the granting of the
above mentioned schemes, in particular stock options,
and make any related proposals to the collegial body;

« Iixamine the related information that is given in the
company’s annual report and docwments intended for
the use during the shareholders meeting;

+ Make proposals to the collegial body regarding the
choice between granting options to subscribe shares or
granting options to purchase shares, specifying the
reasons for its choice as well as the consequences that
this choice has.

4.13.3. Upon resolution of the issues attributable to
the competence of the remuneration committee, the
commitlee should at least address the chairman of the
collegial body and/or chief executive officer of the
company for their opinion on the remuneration of
other executive directors or members of the
management bodies.
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4.14. Audit Committee.

4.14.1. Key functions of the audit commitiee should
be the following:

+ Observe the inlegrity of the financial information
provided by the company, in particilar by reviewing
the relevance and consistency of the accounting
methods used by the company and its group
(including the criteria for the consolidation of the
accounts of companies in the group);

+ At least once a year review the systems of internal
control and risk management to ensure that the key
risks (inclusive of the risks in refation with
compliance with exisling laws and reguiations) are
properly identified, managed and reflected in the
informaticn provided,

+ Ensure the efficiency of the internat audit function,
amoeng other things, by making recommendations on
the selection, appointment, reappointment and
removal of the head of the internal audit department
and on the budget of the department, and by
monitoring the responsiveness of the management to
its findings and recommendations. Should there be no
internal audit anthority in the company, the need for
one should be reviewed at least annually;

* Make recommendations to the collegial body related
with selection, appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor (1o be done by the
general sharcholders’ meeting} and with the terms and
conditions of his engagement. The committee should
investigate sifuations that lead to a resignation of the
audit company or auditor and make recommendations
on required actions in such situations;

« Monitor independence and impartiality of the
external auditor, in particular by reviewing the audit
company’s compliance with applicable guidance
relating to the rotation of audit partners, the level of
fees paid by the company, and similar issues. In order
to prevent occurrence of material conflicts of interest,
the committee, based on the auditor’s disclosed inter
alia data on all remunerations paid by the company to
the auditor and network, should at all times monitor
nature and exten! of the non-audit services. Having
regard to the principals and guidelines established in
the 16 May 2002 Commission Recommendation
2002/590/EC, the commitlee should determine and
apply a formal policy establishing types of non-audit
services that are (a) excluded, (b} permissible only
after review by the committee, and (c) permissible
without referral to the committee,

« Review efficiency of the external audit process and
responsiveness of management to recommendations
made in the external auditor’s management letter,

4.142. All members of the committee should be
furnished with complete information on particulars of
accounting, financial and other operations of the
company. Company’s management should inform the
audit committee of the methods used to account for
significant and unusual transactions where the
accounting ircatment may be open to different

No

To simplify the company’s governing the audit
committee is not formed.
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approaches. In such case a special consideration
should be given to company’s operations in offshore
centres and/or activities carried out through special
purpose vehickes (organizations) and justification of
such operations.

4.14.3. The audit committee shouid decide whether
participation of the chairman of the collegial body,
chief executive officer of the company, chief financial
officer (or superior employees in charge of finances,
treasury and accounting), or internal and external
auditors in the meetings of the commitiee is required
(if required, when). The committee should be entitled,
when needed, to meet with any relevant person
without executive directors and members of the
management bodies present.

4.144. Internal and external auditors should be
secured with not only effective working relationship
with management, but also with frec access (o the
collegial body. For this purpose the audit committee
should act as the principal contact person for the
internal and external auditors.

4.14.5. The audit committee should be informed of the
internal auditor’'s work program, and should be
furnished with internal audit’s reports or periodic
summaries. The audit committee should also be
informed of the work program of the external auditor
and should be furnished with report disclosing all
relationships between the independent auditor and the
company and its group. The commiftiee should be
timely furnished information on all issues arising from
the audit.

4.14.6. The audit commitiee should examine whether
the company is following applicable provisions
regarding the possibility for employees to report
alleged significant irregularities in the company, by
way of complaints or through anonymous submissions
{normally to an independent member of the collegial
body), and should ensure that there is a procedurc
established for proportionate and independent
investigation of these issues and for appropriate
follow-up action.

4.1477. The audit committee should report on its
activities to the collegial body at ieast once in every
six months, at the time the yearly and half-yearly
statements are approved.
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4.15. Bvery year the collegiat body should conduct the
assessment of its activities. The assessment should
include evaluation of collegial body’s structure, work
organization and ability to act as a group, evaluation
of each of the collegial body member’s and
committee’s competence and work efficiency and
assessment whether the collegial body has achieved
its objectives. The collegial body shouid, at least once
a year, make public (as part of the mformation the
company annually discloses on its management
structures and practices) respective information on its
internal organization and working procedures, and
specify what material changes were made as a result
of the assessment of the coilegial body of its own
activities.

No

Such practise wasn’t aimed.

Principle V: The working procedure of the company’s collegial bodies

The working procedure of supervisery and management bodies established in the company should ¢nsure
efficient operation of these bodies and decision-making and encourage active co-operation between the

company’s bodies.

5.1. The company’s supervisory and management
bodies (hereinafler in this Principle the concept
‘collegial bodies’ covers both the collegial bodies of
supervision and the coliegial bodies of management)
should be chaired by chairpersons of these bodies.
The chairperson of a collegial body is responsible for
proper convocation of the celiegial body meetings.
The chairperson should ensure that information about
the meeting being convened and its agenda are
communicated to all members of the body. The
chairperson of a <collegial body should ensure
appropriate conducting of the mectings of the
collegial body. The chairperson should ensure order
and working atmosphere during the meeting.

Yes

Company’s collegiat body - the Board,
accarmnplishes this statute.

52, It is recommended that meetings of the
company’s collegial bodies should be carried out
according to the schedule approved in advance at
certain intervals of time. Each company is free to
decide how often to convene meetings of the collegial
bodies, but it is recommended that these meetings
should be convened at such intervals, which would
guarantee an interrupted resolution of the essential
corporate governance issues. Meetings of the
company’s supervisory board should be convened at
least once in a quarter, and the company’s board
should meet at least once a month'”.

Yes

Company’s Board’s meetings carried out not
far-between one time per guarter.

" The frequency of meetings of the collegial body provided for in the recommendation must be applied in these
cases when both additional collegial bodies are formed at the company, the board and the supervisory board. In
the event only one additional collegial body is formed in the company, the frequency of its meetings may be as

established for the supervisery board, i.c. at least once in a quarler.

64




AB Vilniaus Vingis
Annual accounts for the year 2007

5.3. Members of a collegial body should be notified
about the meeting being convened in advance in order
to allow sufficient time for proper preparation for the
issues on the agenda of the meeting and to ensure
fruitful discussion and adoption of appropriate
decisions. Alongside with the nofice about the
meeting being convened, all the documents relevant to
the issues on the agenda of the meeting should be
submitted to the membess of the collegial body. The
agenda of the meeting should not be changed or
supplemented during the meeting, unless all members
of the collegial body are present or certain issues of
great importance to the company require immediate
resolution.

Yes

The company keeps the indicated statutes of this
recommendation.

5.4, In order to co-ordinaie operation of the
company’s collegial bodies and ensure effective
decision-making  process, chairpersons  of  the
company’s collegial bodies of supervision and
management should closely co-operate by co-
coordinating dates of the meetings, their agendas and
resolving other issues of corporate governance.
Members of the company’s board should be free (o
attend meetings of the company’s supervisory board,
especially where issues concerning removal of the
board members, their liabifity or remuneration are
discussed.

No

The company can’t accomplish this principle,
since only the collegial body is formed —~ Board.

Principie VI: The equitable treatment of shareholders and shareholder rights

The corporate governance framework should ensure the equitable treatment of all shareholders, inciuding
minority and foreign sharcholders. The corporate governance framework should protect the rights of the

sharcholders,

6.1, 1t is recommended that the company’s capital
should consist only of the shares that grant the same
rights to voting, ownership, dividend and other rights
to all their holders.

Yes

The company’s capital consists of the ordinary
nominal shares, which grant the same rights to
all their holders.

6.2, It is recommended that investors should have
access to the information concerning the rights
altached to the shares of the new issue or those issued
carlier in advance, i.e. before they purchase shares.

Yes

The company fully keeps all named statufes in
this recommendation.

6.3. Transactions that are important to the company
and its sharcholders, such as transfer, investment, and
pledge of the company’s assets or any other type of
encumbrance should be subject to approval of the

No

Due to settled practice, which stipulate faster the
acceptance of decisions and effectiveness, the
company is not hold this statute. In this case the
Beard is accept the decision,

2 The Law on Cempanies of the Repubdic of Lithuania (Official Gazefre, 2003, No 123-3574) ne longer assigns
resolutions concerning the investment, transfer, lease, mortgage or acquisition of the long-terms assets accounling
for more than 1/20 of the company’s authorized capital to the competence of the general sharcholders’ meeting,
However, transactions that are important and material for the company’s activity should be considered and
approved by the general sharchoiders” meeting. The Law on Companies contains o prohibition to this effect
either. Yet, in order nol to encumber the company’s activity and escape an unreasonably frequent consideration of
transactions at the meetings, companies are free to establish their own criteria of material transactions, which are
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general  shareholders’ meeting.”” All sharcholders
should be furnished with equal opportunity to
familiarize with and participate in the decision-
making process when significant corporate issues,
including approval of transactions referred te above,
are discussed.

6.4. Procedures of convening and conducting a
general shareholders” meeting should ensure equal
opportunities  for the sharcholders to effectively
participate at the meetings and should not prejudice
the rights and interests of the shareholders. The venue,
date, and time of the sharehoiders” meeting should not
hinder wide attendance of the shareholders. Prior to
the sharcholders’ meeting, the company’s supervisory
and management bodies should enable the
shareholders to lodge gquestions on issues on the
agenda of the general shareholders’ meeting and
receive answers to them.

Yes

All company’s sharcholders are informed about
the date, place and time of general sharehoider’s
meeting. Prior to the sharcholder’s meeting, the
opportunity to get the information on items on
the agenda of shareholder’s meeting is created.

6.5. 1t is recommended that documents on the course
of the general sharcholders” meeting, inciuding draft
resolutions of the meeting, should be placed on the
publicly accessible website of the company in
advance®. It is recommended that the minutes of the
general sharcholders’ meeting after signing them
and/or adopted resolutions should be also placed on
the publicly accessible website of the company.
Seeking te ensure the right of foreigners 1o famitiarize
with the information, whenever feasible, documents
referred to in this recommendation should be
published in English and/or other foreign languages.
Documents referred to in this recommendation may be
published on the publicly accessible website of the
company 1o the extent thal publishing of these
documents is not detrimental to the company or the
company’s commercial secrets are not revealed.

No

The prepared document, including the meeting’s
resolutions, is disclosed through the service
news of Vilnius Stock Exchange. By the request
for every one of shareholders the information is
sending by e-mail,

6.6. Sharcholders should be furnished with the
opportunity to vote in the general shareholders’
meeling in person and in absentia. Sharcholders
shouid not be prevented from voting in writing in
advance by completing the general voting ballot.

Yes

The company’s shareholders can accomplish the
right to take part in the general sharcholder’s
meeting as personally as through represent, if he
has proper warrant. The company creates the
conditions for shareholders to vote, filling the
common volte baliot-paper.

subject to the approval of the meeting. While establishing these criteria of material transactions, companies may
follow the criteria set out in items 3, 4, 5 and 6 of paragraph 4 of Article 34 of the Law on Companics or derogate
from them in view of the specific nature of their operation and their attempt (o ensure uninterrupted, clficient

functioning of the company.

" the documents referred to above should be placed on the company’s websile in advance with due regard 10 a
10-day period before the general sharcholders’ meeting, determined in paragraph 7 of Article 26 of the Law on
Companies of (he Republic of Lithuania {Official Gazette, 2003, No 123-5574).
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6.7, With a view fto increasing the sharcholders’
cpportunitics  to  participate  effectively  at
shareholders®  meetings, the companies are
recommended to expand use of modern technelogies
in voting processes by allowing the sharchoiders 1o
vole in general meetings via terminal equipment of
telecommunications. In  such cases security of
telecommunication equipment, text protection and a
possibility to identify the signature of the voting
person should be guaranteed. Moreover, companies
could furnish its sharcholders, especially foreigners,
with the opportunity to watch sharcholder meetings by
means of modern technologies,

Not
urgent

Till now there is not demand to accomplish this
recommmendation.  The shareholders can vote
through warrant person or to filling the conimon
vote ballot-paper.

Principle VII: The avoidance of conflicts of interest and their disclosure

The corporate governance framework should encourage members of the corporate bodies to avoid conflicts of
interest and assure transparent and effective mechanism of disclosure of conflicts of interest regarding members

of the corporate bodies.

7.1. Any member of the company’s supervisory and
management body shouid avoid a situation, in which
hisfher personal interests are in conflict or may be in
conftict with the company’s interests. In case such a
situation did occur, a member of the company’s
supervisory and management body should, within
reasonable time, inform other members of the same
collegial body or the company’s body that has elected
him/her, or to the company’s shareholders about a
situation of a conflict of interest, indicate the nature of
the conflict and value, where possible.

Yes

7.2. Any member of the company’s supervisory and
management body may not mix the company’s assets,
the use of which has not been mutuaily agreed upon,
wilh his/her personal assets or use them or the
information which he/she learns by virtue of his/her
position as a member of a corporate body for histher
personal benefit or for the benefit of any third person
without a prior agreement of the general shareholders’
meeting or any other corporate body authorized by the
meeting.

Yes

The company keeps these recommendations.
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7.3. Any member of the company’s supervisory and
management body may conclude a transaction with
the company, a member of a corporate body of which
he/she is. Such a transaction (except insignificant ones
due to their low value or concluded when carrying out
routine operations in the company under usual
conditions) must be immediately reported in writing
or orally, by recording this in the minutes of the
meeting, to other members of the same corporate body
or to the corporate body that has eiected him/her or to
the company’s shareholders. Transactions specified in
this  recommendation are also  subject to
recommendation 4.5,

Yes

7.4. Any member of the company’s supervisory and
management body should abstain from voting when
decisions concerning transactions or other issues of
personal or business interest are voted on.

Yes

Company’s Board’s members are acquired with
those statutes and have to keep its.

Principte VII{: Company’s remuneration policy

Remuneration policy and procedure for approval, revision and disclosure of directors’ remuneration
established in the company should prevent potential conflicts of interest and abuse in determining remuneration
of directors, in addition it should ensure publicity and transparency both of company’s remuneration policy and

remuneration of directors.

8.1. A company should make a public statement of the
company’s remuneration policy (hereinafler the
remuneration statement}. This statement should be
part of the company’s annual accounts, Remuneration
statement should also be posted on the company’s
website,

No

The company doesn’t make the report of
remuneration policy. The remuneration policy is
not confirmed in the company. The company
announces the remuneration of managers and the
average worker’s wage in the annual report. The
mentioned information is presenting based on
practice of company and Lithuanian Republic.

8.2. Remuncration statement should mainly focus on
directors’ remuneration policy for the foliowing year
and, if appropriate, the subsequeni years. The
statement should confain a summary of the
implementation of the remuneration policy in the
previous financial year. Special attention should be
given to any significant changes in company’s
remuneration policy as compared to the previous
financial year.

No

The remuneration policy is not confirmed in the
company. The company doesn’t make the
remuneration report, since the majority articles
of principle VI is not urgent for the present
company’s structure.

The information aboui payments and loans for
governing members are presented in the annual
reports.

'
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8.3. Remuneration statement should leastwise include
the following information:

+ Explanation of the relative importance of the
variable and non-variable components of directors’
remuneration;

» Sufficient information on performance criteria that
entitles directors 1o share options, shares or variable
compoenents of remuneration;

» Sufficient information on the linkage between the
remuneration and performance;

» The main parameters and rationale for any annual
bonus scheme and any other non-cash benefits;

« A description of the main characteristics of
supplementary pension or early retirement schemes
for directors.

No

Please refer to our comments under item 8.2,

§.4. Remuneration statement should also summarize
and explain company’s policy regarding the terms of
the contracts executed with executive direciors and
members of the wmanagement bodies. It should
include, inter alia, information on the duration of
contracts with executive directors and members of the
management bodies, the applicable notice periods and
details of provisions for termination payments linked
to early termination under contracts for executive
directors and members of the management bodjes,

No

Please refer to our comments under ilem §.2.

$.5. The information on preparatory and decision-
making processes, during which a policy of
remuneration of directors is being established, should
also be disclosed. Information should include data, if
applicable, on authorities and composition of the
remuneration committee, names and surnames of
external consultants whose services have been used in
determination of the remunecration policy as weil as
the role of sharehoiders’ annual general meeting.

No

Please refer to our comments under item 8.2,

8.6. Without prejudice to the role and organization of
the relevant bodies responsible for setting directors’
remunerations, the remuneration policy or any other
significant change in remuneration policy should be
included into the agenda of the sharcholders” annual
general meeting. Remuneration statement sheuld be
put for wvoting in sharcholders’ annual general
meeting. The vote may be either mandatory or
advisory.

No

Please refer to our comments under item 8.2.

8.7. Remuneration statement should also contain
detailed information on the entire amount of
remuneration, inclusive of other benefits, that was
paid to individual directors over the relevant financial
year. This document should list af least the
information set out in iterns 8.7.1 1¢ 8.7.4 for each
person who has served as a director of the company at
any time during the relevant financial year,

§.7.1. The following remuneration and/or
emoluments-retated information should be disclesed:
+ The total amount of remuneration paid or due to the
director for services performed during the relevant
financial year, inclusive of, where relevant, attendance
fees fixed by the annual general sharcholders meeting;

No

Please refer to our comments under item 8.2,
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« The remuneration and advantages received from any
undertaking belonging to the same group;

+ The remuneration paid in the form of profit sharing
and/or bonug payments and the reasons why such
bonus payments and/or profit sharing were granted;

« If permissible by the law, any significant additional
remuneration paid to directors for special services
outside the scope of the usual functions of a director;
« Compensation reccivable or paid to each former
executive director or member of the management
body as a result of his resignation from the office
during the previcus financial year;

* Total estimated value of non-cash benefits
considered as remuneration, other than the items
covered in the above points.

8.7.2. As regards shares and/or rights to acquire share
options and/or all other share-incentive schemes, the
following information shouid be disclosed:

* The number of share options offered or shares
granted by the company during the relevant financial
vear and their conditions of application;

« The number of shares options exercised during the
relevant financial year and, {or cach of them, the
number of shares involved and the exercise price or
the value of the interest in the share incentive scheme
at the end of the financial year;

« The number of share options unexercised at the end
of the financial year; their exercise price, the exercise
date and the main conditions for the exercise of the
rights;

« All changes in the terms and conditions of existing
share options occurring during the financial year,
8.7.3. The following supplementary pension schemes-
related information should be disclosed:

« When the pension scheme is a defined-benefit
scheme, changes in the directors’ accrued benefits
under that scheme during the relevant financial yeas;
+ When the pension scheme is defined-contribution
scheme, detaited information on contributions paid or
payable by the company in respect of that director
during the relevant financial year.

8.7.4. The statement should also state amounts that the
company or any subsidiary company or enfity
included in the consolidated annual financial
statements of the company has paid to cach person
who has served as a director in the company at any
time during the relevant financial year in the form of
loans, advance payments or guaraniees, including the
amount outstanding and the interest rate.
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$.8. Schemes anticipating remuneration of directors in
shares, share options or any other right to purchase
shares or be remunerated on the basis of share price
movements should be subject to the prior approval of
shareholders’ annual general meeting by way of a
resolution prior to their adoption. The approval of
scheme should be related with the scheme itself and
not to the grant of such share-based benefits under
that scheme to individual directors. All significant
changes in scheme provisions should also be subject
to sharcholders™ approval prior to their adeption; the
approval decision should be made in shareholders’
annual general meeling, In such case sharcholders
should be notified on all terms of suggested changes
and get an explanation on the impact of the suggested
changes.

8.9. The following issues should be subject to
approval by the shareholders’ annual general meeting;
» Grant of share-based schemes, including share
options, to directors;

* Determination of maximum number of shares and
main conditions of share granting;

- The termy within which options can be exercised;

« The conditions for any subsequent change in the
exercise of the options, if permissible by law;

+ All other long-term incentive schemes for which
directors are cligible and which are not available to
other employees of the company under similar terms,
Annual general meeting should also set the deadline

within which the body responsible for remuneration of

directors may award compensations listed in this
article to individual directors.

8.10. Should national law or company’s Articles of
Association ailow, any discounted option arrangement
under which any rights are granted to subscribe to
shares at a price lower than the market value of the
share prevailing on the day of the price determination,
or the average of the market values over a number of
days preceding the date when the exercise price s
determined, shouid also be subject to the
sharchoiders’ approval,

8.11. Provisions of Articles 8.8 and 8.9 should not be
applicable to schemes allowing for participation under
similar conditions to company’s employees or
employees of any subsidiary company whose
employees are eligible to participate in the scheme
and which has been approved in the shareholders’
annuai general meeting.

No urgent

The Company currently does not have any such
remuneration scheme.

Please refer to our comments under item 8.8,

. Please refer to cur comments under item 8.8,

Please refer to our comments under item 8.8.
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8.12. Prior to the annual general meeting that is
intended to consider decision stipulated in Article 8.8,
the shareholders must be provided an opportunity fo
familiarize with draft resolution and project-related
notice (the documents should be posted on the
company’s website). The notice should contain the
full text of the share-based remuneration schemes or a
description of their key terms, as well as fult names of
the participants in the schemes. Notice should also
specify the relationship of the schemes and the overall
remuneration policy of the directors. Drafl resclution
must have a clear reference to the scheme itself or to
the summary of its key terms. Sharcholders must also
be presented with information on how the company
intends to provide for the shares required to meel its
obligations under incentive schemes. It shouid be
clearly stated whether the company intends to buy
shares in the market, hold the shares in reserve or
issue new ones. There should also be a summary on
scheme-related expenses the company will suffer due
to the anticipated application of the scheme. Al
information given in this article must be posted on the
company’s website,

Principle IX: The role of stakeholders in corporate governance

The corporate governance framework should recognize the rights of stakeholders as established by law and
encourage active co-operation between companies and stakeholders in creating the company value, jobs and
financial sustzinability. For the purposes of this Principle, the concept “siakeholders” includes investors,
employees, creditors, suppliers, clients, Jocal community and other persons having certain interest in the

company concerned,

9.1. The corporaie governance framework should
assure that the righis of stakeholders that are protected
by law are respected.

0.2. The corporate governance framework should
create conditions for the stakeholders to participate in
corporaie governance in the manner prescribed by

law. Examples of mechanisms of stakeholder
participation in corporate governance include:

employee participation in adoption of certain key
decisions for the company; consulting the employees
on corporate governance and other important issues;
employee participation in the company’s share capital;
creditor involvement in governance in the context of
the company’s insolvency, eic.

9.3, Where stakeholders participate in the corporate
governance process, they should have access to
relevant information.

Yes

Compliance with this recommendation is
ensured by the precise supervision and control of
the Company’s business activities by the state-
owned institutions and asscciated consumer
organizations. The publicity of the Company’s
business activities creates conditions for
stakeholders to participate in the governance of
the Company in compliance with the procedure
established by law as well as in compliance with
the Company’s Articles of Association and Inner
Regulations. Managing bodies are consulting
with employees on the issues of governance of
the Company and other subsiantial issues; the
participation of employees in the Company’s
share capital is not limited.
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Principle X: Information disclosure and transparency

The corporate governance framework should ensure that timely and accurate disclosure is made on ali material
information regarding the company, including the financial situation, performance and governance of the

company.

10.1. The company should disclose information on:

» The financial and operaiing resulis of the company;

» Company objectives;

» Persons holding by the right of ownership or in
control of a block of shares in the company;

+ Members of the company’s supervisory and
management bodies, chief executive officer of the
company and their remuneration;

» Material foreseeable risk factors;

+ Transactions between the company and connected
persons, as well as transactions concluded outside the
course of the company’s regular operations;

« Material issues regarding employeces and other
stakeholders;

« Governance structures and sirategy.

This list should be deemed as a minimum
recotnimendation, while the companies are encouraged
not to limit themselves to  disclosure of the
information specified in this ist.

10.2. 1t is recommended that consolidated results of
the whole group to which the company belongs
should be disclosed when information specified in
item 1 of Recommendation 10.1 is under disclosure.

10.3. It is recommended that information on the
professional  background, qualifications of the
members of supervisory and management bodies,
chief executive officer of the company should be
disclosed as well as potential conflicts of interest that
may have an effect on their decisions when
information specified in item 4 of Recommendation
10.1 about the members of the company’s supervisory
and management bodies is under disclosure. It is also
recommended that information about the amount of
remuneration received from the company and other
income should be disclosed with regard to members of
the company’s supervisory and management bodies
and chief exccutive officer as per Principle VIII.

10.4, It is recommended that information about the
links between the company and its stakeholders,
including employees, creditors, suppliers, local
community, as weli as the company’s policy with
regard to human resources, employee participation
schemes in the company’s share capital, ctc. should be
disclosed when information specified in item 7 of
Recommendation 10,1 is under disclosure.

Yes
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10,5. Information should be disclosed in such a way
that  neither shareholders nor investors are
discriminated with regard to the manner or scope of
access to information. Infermation should be
disclosed to all simultanecously. It is recommended
that notices about material evenfs should be
announced before or after a irading session on the
Vilnius Stock Exchange, so that all the company’s
shareholders and investors should have equal access
to the information and make informed investing
decisions.

Yes

10.6. Channels for disseminating information should
provide for fair, timely and cost-efficient access to
relevant information by users. It is recommended that
information technologies should be employed for
wider dissemination of information, for instance, by
placing the information on the company’s website. It
is recommended that infermation should be published
and placed on the company’s website not only in
Lithuanian, but also in English, and, whenever
possible and necessary, in other languages as welil.

Yes

10.7. It is recommended that the company’s annual
reports and other periodical accounts prepared by the
company should be placed on the company’s website.
[t is recommended that the company should announce
information about material events and changes in the
price of the company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
on the company’s website too.

Yes

The Company with this

recommendation,

complies

Principle XI: The selection of the company’s auditor

The mechanism of the selection of the company’s auditor should ensure independence of the firm of auditor’s

conciusion and opinion.

11.1. An annual audit of the company’s financial | Yes The  Company  complies  with  this
staterments and report should be conducted by an recommendation.

independent firm of auditors in order to provide an

external and objective opinion on the company’s

financial statements.

11.2. It is recommended that the company’s | Yes The  Company complies  with this
supervisory board and, where it is not set up, the recommendation.

company’s board should propose a candidate firm of

auditors to the general shareholders’” meeting,

11.3. It is recommended that the company should | Not An audit company not receives from the
disclose to its shareholders the level of fees paid fo the | applicable | Company remuneration for consulting on tax

firm of auditors for non-audit services rendered to the
company. This information should be also known to
the company’s supervisory board and, where it is not
formed, the company’s board upon their consideration
which firm of auditors to propose for the general
sharcholders’ meeting,

and business issues.
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